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Chairman’s Statement
EERBREFE

In 2015, the global economy faced downward pressure and was ridden
with instability and uncertainties. With commodity prices on general
decline and price growth of consumer goods falling alongside, certain
economies faced deflationary pressure. As for the Chinese economy, as
it shifted into the “new norm”, both its overall growth and its export
sector gradually slowed down.

For the biochemical business of Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), 2015 was a challenging
year. There were new entrants in the market and labour shortage
pushed up related costs. To more effectively cope with this
complex operating environment and intensified competition,
the Group worked hard at optimizing its cost structure. As for its
industrial businesses, the lacklustre macro economy led to delays of
infrastructure and mining projects, and that directly impacted on sales
of the Group’s Caterpillar machinery equipment. At the same time,
automobile sales growth softened and motorcycle sales also decreased
in China.

On the biochemical business front, our production plant in
Zhumadian yet again passed U.S. Food and Drug Administration
certification with zero defects, which is a superb endorsement of the
quality of our products. The Group’s subsidiaries — Pucheng Chia
Tai Biochemistry Co., Ltd. and Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai Co.,
Ltd. — continued to enjoy “High and New Technology Enterprises”
tax status in 2015. Moreover, we continued to develop new products
during the year and strive to obtain international accreditation for
new products. As for our export business, despite the slow global
economic recovery, with the Vietnam market experiencing strong
growth and our stepped up effort to expand into new markets in
Europe, South America and Australia, the Group managed to
maintain its favourable market share.

The 2015 “No. 1 Central Document”, the first policy paper of the
year issued by the State Council has “accelerating agricultural
modernisation” as its theme. The government emphasized the need to
encourage development of new distribution channels for agricultural
products, supporting the participation of e-commerce, logistics,
trading and financial enterprises in building agricultural e-commerce
platforms, and thereby propelling the adoption of e-commerce in rural
areas. The efforts as described in the first policy paper of the year were
aimed at promoting transformation of rural areas and increasing sales
and turnover of agricultural products in the market. One year on,
modernisation of the agricultural industry continues to be the focus of
the 2016 “No. 1 Central Document”, targeting to improve the quality,
efficiency and effectiveness as well as the competitiveness of the
industry.

The swine industry in China is transforming and integrating quickly.
The constituents, both upstream and downstream, of the industrial
chain are expanding. Large-scale swine farmers in China started
boosting their production capacity during the year, which when
completed will drive the demand of livestock husbandry and related
industries.
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Poultry meat is important in the urbanization process as it is an
important yet inexpensive source of animal protein for the masses; and
people’s increasing demand for poultry products also boosts poultry
production. With the increasing demand on the livestock husbandry
industry, market demand for chlortetracycline (“CTC”) type products
will also increase.

Regarding production management, the Group will push for attention
to details, optimize its production process and techniques, reduce
energy consumption and wastage and ensure product quality and
production safety. In the area of research and development, the Group
will cooperate with external parties and encourage innovation. With
environmental protection and social responsibility in mind, we will
continue to reduce the carbon footprint of our products. The Group’s
overall aspiration is to enhance production efficiency, increase
business turnover, and embrace innovation.

To strengthen its existing market position and expand overseas
market share, the Group will step up sales and marketing efforts,
including boosting its sales network. The Group will also ensure that
it can respond speedily to changes in the market, enhance its brand
image, and raise its competitiveness in steady strides.

Human resources are the key to the success of the Group. Therefore,
the underlying direction of our human resources policy is to provide
professional training to employees and support individuals in
developing their careers working for the Group.

Although the industrial sector is currently braving headwinds, China
will continue to push forward with urbanisation and modernisation
in the long run. These developments will translate into demand
for infrastructure resources including various infrastructure and
transportation build-outs.

Guided by our Three Benefits Principle — benefit the country,
benefit the people and benefit the company — we strive to develop
our business in a high-quality, effective and sustainable manner. We
pledge to act responsibly, and to operate our business and engage in
production with care for the environment, respect for the law and
emphasis on safety and quality.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to our employees for their efforts and contributions to the
Group in the past year. [ would also like to extend my gratitude to our
shareholders for their trust and support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 February 2016
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Financial Highlights

M BBE

(Unit: US$'000) (Hifr : FoxT ) 2015 2014
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FHEEmMKELEH
Revenue LN 101,767 117,131
Gross Profit EH 33,960 37,686
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company GRS VR NN ) o | 8,182 19,430
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)* A5 I FiE A T 8 9 R A (SE A )+ 3.46 8.90
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FHEMB RN ELEH
Property, Plant & Equipment L/E B & 48,555 51,834
Total Assets Hf 198,972 206,836
Total Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings AT BB A 16,678 18,272
Issued Capital AT A 25,333 1,195
Shareholders’ Equity JBE WA i £ 148,814 147,672
Total Equity HE 2 B8 B 168,118 167,952
Revenue US$’000 Gross Profit US$’000
WA FrET EF FrxEr
150,000 + 50,000 ~
117,131
40,000 37,686
101,767 33,960
100,000 -
30,000
20,000
50,000 -
10,000
0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015
Profit Attributable US$’000 Basic and US cents
to Shareholders T LT Diluted 21l
of the Company ;5000 - Earnings 10 - 8.90
Ao BT 19.430 Per Share :
AATRER 20,000 - ’ BREEAR 8
iy BEnR
15,000 - 6 -
10,000 - 8,182 4 3.46
0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015

Remark 7k ¢

*

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

AR T BERMEA A A > TR A P9 T3 A7 95 8 e T T 50 M 8 50 JB - b~ 3 Wi 54 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

In April 2015, an application was submitted to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the separate listing
of the ordinary shares in the Company. The listing of our Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of introduction took
place on 3 July 2015. The shares in our Company were distributed in
specie to the shareholders of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., the immediate
holding company of the Group before listing.

The Group has two lines of businesses: biochemical business and
industrial business. The biochemical business, which focuses on the
manufacture and sale of CTC products and is carried on by Group
subsidiaries, accounted for all of the Group’s consolidated revenue.
The Group’s industrial business comprises the Group’s interest in its
joint venture ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(“ECI Metro”), and the Group’s interest in its associate Zhanjiang
Deni Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Zhanjiang Deni”).
The results of the Group’s industrial business is incorporated in the
statement of comprehensive income as share of profits from joint

venture and associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Group was US$8.18 million, compared to
US$19.43 million in 2014.

In 2015, the Group’s revenue decreased 13.1% to US$101.77 million
(2014: US$117.13 million). Gross profit margin was at 33.4%,
compared to 32.2% in 2014.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 3.46 cents (2014:
US 8.90 cents). The board has resolved not to declare a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Biochemical

The Group is one of the leading CTC producers globally. The Group
generates revenue from the manufacture and sale of CTC products.
The two main products of the Group are CTC Premix and CTC HCL.
CTC products are used as feed additives to promote healthy growth
of livestock, prevent or cure animal diseases and improve overall feed

efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

CTC products sold by the Group are marketed mainly under the
Group’s own brands “Shihao” and “Citifac.” The Group’s CTC
products are sold and distributed globally, including the United
States of America, China and Southeast Asia. The Group’s overseas
customers include feed mills, pharmaceutical companies and trading

companies, whereas customers in China are mainly feed mills.

The Group currently has two CTC production plants in China, one
located in Pucheng (which produces CTC Premix and CTC HCL)
and one located in Zhumadian (which produces CTC Premix). Raw

materials are generally sourced locally.

For the year under review, the CTC manufacturing industry was
characterised by intensified competition and generally lower average
selling prices. The Group’s biochemical revenue decreased 13.1%
to US$101.77 million (2014: US$117.13 million). Of this, revenue
contribution from China, United States of America, Asia Pacific
(excluding China), Europe and elsewhere were 22.2%, 27.1%, 26.0%,
8.7% and 16.0%, respectively.

Competition intensified on two fronts as new players entered into the
CTC manufacturing market. First, in the CTC premix segment, two
notable new entrants both based in China entered into the market.
While these two new entrants also sell their products globally, the
more intense competition caused by them in 2015 was felt in China.
Second, an existing CTC premix competitor added CTC HCL into its

product offerings, increasing the number of CTC HCL manufacturers.

As a result of increased competition, average selling prices of CTC
products came down during the year. In 2015, average selling prices of
CTC premix reduced by approximately 5% when compared to 2014,
and the average selling prices of CTC HCL reduced by approximately

5% as well.

Gross profit margin stood at 33.4% in 2015, compared to 32.2%
in 2014. The Group endeavours to continuously raise production
efficiency and lower production cost. This year, for instance, the
Group further optimised formulation to reduce raw materials costs
and began to implement intelligent control modules to reduce energy

consumption.
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Industrial

The Group’s industrial business is conducted through two companies,

ECI Metro and Zhanjiang Deni.

The Group holds a 50% equity interest in ECI Metro Investment
Co., Ltd.. ECI Metro is principally engaged in the sale, leasing and
customer service of Caterpillar machinery equipment. ECI Metro
is one of the four Caterpillar dealers in China. Its service territory
covers the western part of China, namely Yunnan, Guizhou, Sichuan,
Shaanxi, Gansu and Qinghai provinces, Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region, Tibet Autonomous Region and Chongqing municipality.
Caterpillar is the world’s leading manufacturer of earthmoving and
construction equipment. Key customers include those engaged in the

mining, railroad, road and other infrastructure construction industries.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, China’s
gross domestic product in 2015 registered a year-on-year growth of
6.9%, compared to 7.3% in 2014. Meanwhile, fixed-asset investment
growth in China softened from 15.7% in 2014 to 10.0% in 2015.
Demand for excavators dropped in the western part of China as
infrastructure and other large-scale projects were delayed amid
moderating economic growth. Decline in commodity prices in general
also fuelled a slowdown of related mining and industrial sectors. The
changes in the market and general economic conditions in China
had an adverse effect on the Group’s share of profits of this business.
As disclosed in our listing document dated 17 June 2015, the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2015 dated
10 August 2015 and the nine months results announcement for
the period ended 30 September 2015 dated 10 November 2015,
contribution from this business was approximately US$0.5 million for
the first quarter of 2015, US$1.58 million for the first half of 2015
and US$1.54 million for the first nine months ended 30 September
2015, respectively. The Group also disclosed in the announcement
of its results for the nine months ended 30 September 2015 that
the decline in contribution from the ECI Metro business reflected
a worsening operating environment, consistent with a trend which
was largely in line with what had been disclosed in the past. This
worsening environment continued into the fourth quarter of 2015, for
which a loss of US$0.31 million was incurred. The downward trend
has continued and is not expected to abate in the near future. In the
year ended 31 December 2015, our share of profits of joint venture
amounted to US$1.23 million compared to US$11.64 million last

year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN
TEXH

ACHR ) TR BE IR W K A W] — 50 W) 0 R
R -

AR T 5 5 ) WA BB A PR A AT 500% 8 HE © 5
PIWI 8 AR AR S R B B - LR
B P MRS o 5 40 W I b 1o WY 5% A A0 40 A8
Pz — > HE SO 2 v e o B -
N~ I BV H R W - SR ER AR
[~ V580 6 A S TR o RO R R B
A 07 TR AR Ml Sl A EE R - BRI W Y
LR P QREGE SR - BRK - 78 S I b B B B
HERAT I LA AR o

WEgEPEARLEMBBERATR > ZF—HPH
B Py A M P AR SR H6.90% I R > R —TU4EHI
F57.3% o BULFEKE > PEEEEEREHEHN_F
— AR 15.7% 0 4% 2 2 —FAEM10.0% o 52 K
B R4 B > S e R H b KA I H A T
% > FEE R (B G I R IR A TR R TR o KR
i A A X 9 T AT SR 5 K B P R A 3T AR -
17 3 5 A B v 1B Y 288 SR YO 3 AN 8 TR Ak 1 R A
WHEATAREE WEBEHHAE_F—HFEAH
TLEHMEdSCH - HEI A AA THREZR—H
ENA=ZTHIEAEAK P YEREAS R HME
+—H+HBRE_ZE—HEMA=ZTHIELMEAHZE
BAGWE > RENEFEZHEHMR T —HFHE—
Z DR AEPPERRERZ—HELAZT
H ok Ju i A 4050 % #9508 3658 ~ 1588 36 70 [ 1547
EC o REEBERBREZ—HENLA=Z1THIL
JUR A BN ENWE > ZYIWBEEZ TR TR
R T #8088 BRI AR AL BB AR A R LA
ZHWBHE - BKEBRBE—HAEHE L —HE
SVOZE > I GRA3IE TG - FFE T HRMNE
REFAGEEMERN - BREZ-F—HF+2NH
=+ — HIRFE > AL E A A S S FEEN 123
B0 » AR B 1,164 550 ©

-2 -1 F F &

07



08

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

The Group holds a 28% equity interest in Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle
Parts Co. Ltd.. Zhanjiang Deni is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of automotive parts, which are mainly sold to
automobile and motorcycle manufacturers. The overall operating
environment was challenging as well. According to the China
Association of Automobile Manufacturers, motorcycle sales declined
by 11.7% vyear-on-year and total automobile sales growth softened
from 6.9% in 2014 to 4.7% in 2015. As disclosed in our listing
document, a pre-tax non-recurring gain on factory relocation of
US$7.5 million was recorded in 2014. In 2015, our share of profits
of associate decreased to US$2.97 million from US$8.65 million last

year.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, intensified competition in the CTC industry and
pricing pressure are expected to continue, adding headwinds to the
Group’s biochemical business in 2016. As for the Group’s industrial
business in China, the economy’s slower pace of growth and slowdown
of the related mining and industrial sectors would continue to hit ECI
Metro’s business and a general weakness in motorcycle and automobile
sales would continue to affect Zhanjiang Deni’s business. Overall, the

Group remains cautious about the coming year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total assets of US$199.0
million, a decrease of 3.8% as compared to US$206.8 million as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net cash of US$1.4 million
(31 December 2014: net debt of US$1.3 million). Net debt to equity
ratio (defined as total borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents

divided by total equity) was 0.01 as at 31 December 2014.

Borrowings of the Group were all denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
(31 December 2015: US$16.7 million, 31 December 2014: US$18.3

million).

As at 31 December 2015, fixed interest rate bank borrowings
amounted to US$11.2 million (31 December 2014: US$7.7 million).

All domestic sales in mainland China are transacted in RMB and
export sales are transacted in foreign currencies. The Group monitors
exchange rate movements and determines appropriate hedging

activities when necessary.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$18.1 million as at 31
December 2015, an increase of US$1.1 million compared to US$17.0
million as at 31 December 2014.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, out of the total borrowings of US$16.7
million (31 December 2014: US$18.3 million) obtained by the Group,
US$5.4 million (31 December 2014: US$8.4 million) was secured and
accounted for 32% (31 December 2014: 46%) of the total borrowings.
Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and land lease
prepayments with an aggregate net book value of US$4.1 million (31
December 2014: US$5.1 million) were pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed around 4,200 staff
(including 800 staff from subsidiaries, 1,500 staff from joint venture
and 1,900 staff from associate) in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rates while performance bonuses are
granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for

example, medical insurance and training.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBRSE

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
the principles of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics,
transparency, accountability and integrity in all aspects of business
and to ensure that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable

laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) — Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) during the period from the date of listing of the
Company on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises nine directors including
four executive directors, two non-executive directors and three

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of all directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among Directors are set out
in the Biographical Details of Directors section on pages 22 to

24 of the annual report.
(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are
the chief executive officers of the biochemical division and
the industrial division respectively. The roles of chairman and
chief executives are distinct and separate with a clear division
of responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing
the function of the Board while the chief executive officers are

responsible for managing the Company’s business.
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Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, through its committees, leads and provides
direction for management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation by management, reviews the
operational and financial performance, provides oversight to
ensure that a sound system of internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

Management is responsible for the execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance for its Directors and officers.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the date of listing of the Company
on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Board, at all times,
met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the number of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and meet the independence

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions”) which is based on the required
standards set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules — Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
Having made specific enquiries with each of the Directors,
all of them have confirmed that they complied with the
required standard set out in the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions during the period from the date of listing of the
Company on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015.

The Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations are disclosed in the Report of the

Directors section on pages 25 to 42 of the annual report.
Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of his responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During the period from the
date of listing of the Company on 3 July 2015 to 31 December
2015, the Company provided trainings on Hong Kong Listing
Rules and monthly updates on the Company’s financial

performance and financial position to all Directors.
Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

During the period from the date of listing of the Company
on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Company held
three Board meetings, one Audit Committee meeting, one
Remuneration Committee meeting and one Nomination

Committee meeting.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to performing their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors can
attend Board meetings in person or by means of telephone,

electronic or other communication facilities.

The following meeting attendance record of each Director
during the period from the date of listing of the Company on
3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015 demonstrates the Directors’

strong commitment to the Company.
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Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings (g) EZEeREZTSETHNZEESESE(A)
(continued)

No. of meetings attended/held
W R Rk

Audit Remuneration = Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
HHEEY HHRZEEE FMZEE RAZEE
Chairman and HHERR
Non-executive Director FHHITEH
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont N 2/3 - - /1
Executive Directors HiT#HH
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BB 3/3 - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi R 2/3 - 1/1 -
Mt. Nopadol Chiaravanont AN 3/3 - - -
Mr. Yao Minpu Wk RAME 4 3/3 - - -
Non-executive Director FEHATHF
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe R — A
(appointed on 23 October 2015) (R=F—H%E+H
Z+=HZ%M) 2R - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors W/ FEBITEFH
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom?6 2k 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo L 33 1/1 1/1 in
Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward [SLiE &S 33 1/1 1/1 -
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(h)

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report section on pages 43
and 44 of the annual report.

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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(h)
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BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to three committees which operate
under defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of each
committee are available on the Company’s website. The meeting

attendance record of the committee members is set out on page 13.
(i) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a non-executive
Director, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Surasak

Rounroengrom and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individual(s)
nominated for directorship and assess the independence of

independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company,
selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs are
also taken into account. Board appointments are based on

meritocracy.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and,
together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election, at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
period from the date of listing of the Company on 3 July
2015 to 31 December 2015 to consider the nomination of Mr.

Yoichi Ikezoe as a non-executive director of the Company.
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(i)

(iif)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(Chairman), Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Ko Ming
Tung, Edward and an executive Director, Mr. Thanakorn

Seriburi.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to oversee the establishment
and operation of formal and transparent procedures for
developing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management, as well as to oversee and administrate the

Company’s share option scheme.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the success
of the Company and enhance the value of the Company to
shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the
period from the date of listing of the Company on 3 July 2015
to 31 December 2015 to determine remuneration packages for
the Directors and senior management. Details of emoluments
of each Director are set out in note 9 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to communicate with auditors with
regards to its duties relating to financial and other reporting,
internal control, external and internal audits, review financial
information as well as to oversee the financial reporting system

and risk management and internal control systems.

B AR L

(i)

(iii)
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held one meeting during the period
from the date of listing of the Company on 3 July 2015 to 31
December 2015. The following is a summary of the work of the
Audit Committee during the period from the date of listing of
the Company on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015:

o reviewed the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2015

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

° reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June

2015;

o reviewed compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code;

o reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditors; and
° reviewed internal control.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2015 with recommendation to the

Board for approval.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors. To ensure external auditors’ independence, the
Audit Committee reviewed the audit and non-audit services
undertaken by the external auditors during the period from the
date of listing of the Company on 3 July 2015 to 31 December
2015.
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(iii)  Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
paid by the Group to the external auditors is set out below:

(i) BEREEE(HA)

REEZZ-RFE A=+ HILFEE
> 2SR [ S B I A U T e

2015

—E LA

(US$’000)

Category of Services IR 75 25 51 (FoC T 7T)

Audit services TR B 116

Non-audit services I B % IR

— review engagements and —HHEE R

agreed-upon procedures AT ER T 26

— advisory services — o MR B 13

Total A 155

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control,

assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and particularly the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their

training programs and budget.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is kept regularly appraised

of significant risks that may have impact on the Group’s performance.

The Board considers that the Group’s internal control is adequate and

effective.

For handling and the dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Company to
handle inside information and, where required, communicate with the

Company’s stakeholders in a timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 62, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special
general meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time
to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company can submit a written requisition to the Board for convening

a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of

the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10

business days) shall be given to all members of the Company.
To Make Enquiry to the Board
Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by

writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
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To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred members can submit a written requisition to the Board

for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or by not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholders in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

These publications are available on the Company’s website.
During the period from the date of listing of the Company on 3 July

2015 to 31 December 2015, the Company did not make any changes

to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Mr.
Chairman, a Non-executive Director of the Company and the

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 51, was appointed as the

Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 15 September 2014.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also an executive director
and vice chairman of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”), chairman of
C.P. Lotus Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”) (companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) and True Visions Public Company
Limited. He is also a director of True Corporation Public Company
Limited, CP ALL Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public
Company Limited (companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand) and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mzr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul, aged 73, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer (Biochemical Division) and an Executive Director
of the Company on 15 September 2014. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and a vice chairman of the Charoen
Pokphand Group. Mr. Phityaisarakul has extensive management

experiences in various industries.

Mzr. Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 70, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 12 February 1988. He was designated as an Executive
Director of the Company and appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer (Industrial Division) and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 15 September 2014. He is a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Seriburi is also the chairman and
chief executive officer of the automotive industrial business group
(China) of the Charoen Pokphand Group. He has been working on
investment projects for the Charoen Pokphand Group in the PRC
since 1979 and has extensive experience in industrial operations in
Asia and elsewhere. Mr. Seriburi was an executive director of CPP

until 3 July 2015.

Mzr. Nopadol Chiaravanont, aged 54, was appointed as a Director of
the Company on 22 July 2014 and was designated as an Executive
Director of the Company on 15 September 2014. He is a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chiaravanont is also the
assistant to chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group, vice chairman of

the automotive and industrial business group (China) of the Charoen

Pokphand Group and a director of CPPC Public Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Yao Minpu, aged 64, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 15 September 2014. He is a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yao has been a senior vice
chairman of Chia Tai Group Agro-Industry and Food Business
(China) from 2010. He was also the chairman of China Animal
Agriculture Association (Swine division) from 2003 to 2007, a
senior research consultant (FAWFHEIE HEM) of Agriculture and
Business Administration (J23 T.F4 #L) at the School of Continuing
Education of Tsinghua University from 2007 to 2008. He was a
committee member of Micro-organism Environmental Resources
Control Laboratory (AR EFMAEENRCH G HEBZEH
HK#M) of Beijing Institute of Technology in 2011 and a part-time
professor of School of Chemical Engineering & Environment of
Beijing Institute of Technology in 2013, and is currently a committee
member of the China Institute for Rural Studies (H B E2A#FZE 5%
BGZ B ) at Tsinghua University. Mr. Yao was awarded with the
China Animal Agriculture Association Outstanding Contribution

Awards (H B 7 40 b 8 € B KSE) in 2006.

Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 56, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 23 October 2015. Mr. lkezoe is also a
non-executive director of CPP. Mr. lkezoe is currently Executive
Officer, Vice President of East Asia Bloc (South China), Senior
Officer of ASEAN and South West Asia Bloc of ITOCHU
Corporation (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and
Managing Director of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Ikezoe has
been working for ITOCHU Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH
& Co., Ltd.) since 1983. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from
the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr.
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company and a member

Surasak Rounroengrom, aged 62, was appointed as an

of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 15 September 2014. Mr. Rounroengrom
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from Royal Thai Naval
Academy, Thailand, in February 1977. Throughout his career with the
Royal Thai Navy, Mr. Rounroengrom held many positions. He was
the 48th Commander-in-Chief of the Royal Thai Navy from October
2011 to September 2013, when he retired from the Thai armed
forces. He was the Supreme Commander Advisor from January 2014
to September 2014 and has been a National Legislative Assembly
Member since the end of July 2014.
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee on 15 September 2014. Mr. Cheng obtained
a Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from London School of Economics and Political Science,
England in August 1984 and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree
in Accounting from University of Kent, England in July 1983. He is
a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants
of Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise in accounting,

finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of
C.P. Lotus, CSI Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Imagi International Holdings Limited, Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited, Top Spring International Holdings Limited
and UDL Holdings Limited (companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Cheng was previously an executive director
of 21 Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) and an independent non-executive director of South
China Land Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange).

Mr.

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company and a member

Ko Ming Tung, Edward, aged 55, was appointed as an

of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 15
September 2014. Mr. Ko obtained an external Bachelor of Laws
Degree from the University of London in the United Kingdom in
August 1986 and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Ko is the principal of Messrs. Edward Ko & Company and has been
practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong for more than 24 years.

Mr. Ko is currently an independent non-executive director of Sinofert
Holdings Limited, Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited, EverChina
Int’l Holdings Company Limited (companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) and Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ko
was previously a non-executive director of Harmonic Strait Financial
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange).

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is a cousin of Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are brothers.
Saved as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship

among members of the Board.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
chlortetracycline. Additionally, the Group is also involved, through
its joint venture and associated company, in the trading of Caterpillar
products and the manufacture and sale of automotive parts and

carburetors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group are set out in the Management

Discussion and Analysis section on pages 5 to 9 of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion
on our environmental policies and performance, and the key

relationships with stakeholders are set out below.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are discussed below.
Details of the Group’s financial risk management are set out in note

34 to the financial statements of the annual report.
Reliance on a Key Customer

A substantial amount of CTC products were sold directly to a key
customer in the United States, which is also our largest customer
accounting for approximately 27% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

If in the future this key customer reduces to a material extent the
amount of purchase orders placed with the Group or ceases to place
purchase orders with the Group, and the Group is unable to offset
any loss of such sales volume by corresponding gain in sales volume to
other existing or new customers, or if it fails to settle the amount due
promptly, the Group’s operating results and financial condition could

be materially and adversely affected.
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Volatility of Commodity Prices

The principal raw materials of CTC products are corn starch, yeast,
peanut meal and soybean meal which are used to manufacture CTC
products. The availability and prices of the necessary raw materials
may be adversely affected by factors beyond the Group’s control, such

as weather conditions, natural disasters or a sudden surge in demand.

If the supply of raw materials is disrupted to a material degree or if
there is a substantial increase in the prices of raw materials, and the
Group is not able to purchase the raw materials of the same quality
from alternative suppliers at competitive prices or to transfer such
material price increase to customers, the Group’s financial condition

and operating results may be materially and adversely affected.
Market Competition

The Group faces intense competition from other CTC producers.
New competitors may also generate new brand attraction, leading to
the loss of the Group’s existing clients and negatively impacting the

Group’s market share.
Product Liability

If the Group’s products fail to perform as expected, or prove to
be defective or result in accidents, personal injuries, casualties or
financial losses to customers, the Group may be subject to liability
claims for damages. If products do not meet the specifications and
requirements requested by customers, or if any of the Group’s products
are defective, such defects or any complaints or negative publicity
resulting therefrom could result in decreased sales of the Group’s
products, and the Group may also be subject to product liability claims

and litigation.
Licenses and Permits

In accordance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group
is required to obtain and maintain various licences and permits in
order to commence and operate our business. In addition, in order to
export and sell CTC products overseas, the Group needs to obtain
various government approvals and comply with applicable standards
in relation to production processes, premises and CTC products in the

countries where the Group sell CTC products.
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Although the Group currently has all necessary licences and permits,
the eligibility criteria for such licences and permits may change
from time to time and may become more stringent. In addition, new
requirements for the grant or renewal of such licences and permits
may come into effect in the future. The introduction of any such new
and/or more stringent laws or regulations may significantly escalate
the compliance and maintenance costs or may limit or even prohibit

the Group to continue its existing operations or expand its business.
Environmental Compliance

Our CTC products production is required to comply with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations in the PRC which
govern the standards of air pollution, waste water discharge and
noise emissions. Local PRC government and authorities generally
have the authority delegated by relevant laws and regulations to
impose penalties on companies failing to comply with the relevant

environmental protection laws and regulations.

In addition to the existing environmental protection laws and
regulations, the PRC government may promulgate new and stricter
environmental protection laws and regulations in the biochemical
industry in the future which may apply to the Group. As a result,
compliance with such legal requirements will become more
burdensome and we may incur additional costs in production process
and operations, which may ultimately adversely affect production and

results of operations.
Environmental Policies and Performance

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. We
have devoted significant operating and financial resources to ensure
our production complies with environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. For example, waste water recycling facilities
are installed in our production plants in Zhumadian and Pucheng to

utilize water resources more effectively.
Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

We highly value our talents and are committed to provide a safe work
environment to our employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market rates
while performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits include, for example, medical insurance and
training. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in compliance
with the national regulations in the areas of equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.
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We have in place safety guidelines and operating manuals setting
out safety measures for the production processes. In accordance
with applicable laws and regulations in China, we provide our
employees with training programs on work safety including trainings
on safe usage of chemicals and machinery, accident prevention and
management. We also conduct regular inspections on our machinery

to ensure compliance with safety standards.
Customers

We strive to provide products of the highest quality to our customers.
Our operations are certified with ISO 9001, Chinese-GMP and EU-
GMP and we have stringent internal quality control procedures in
place. We have set up our own laboratories to conduct product testing
as part of our internal quality assurance. To monitor customers’
satisfaction, the Group has dedicated teams to reach out to customers
to listen to their needs and opinions. With the continuous feedback
of our customers, we will continue to improve our product and service

qualities.
Suppliers

The Group has set up supplier management policies in accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC to monitor the supplier
selection process. The quality of incoming materials is ensured under a
well-established control process in our production plants. We carefully
choose suppliers that share the same commitment to product quality
and work ethics with us. In our procurement process, suppliers are
evaluated based on a number of assessment criteria, including their
service quality, environmental and social performances, and ability to
supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We also perform
on-site inspections of suppliers as and when necessary to ensure all our

requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2015 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 45 to 126 of the annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from 6
June 2016 to 7 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company on 7 June 2016,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
four years ended 31 December 2015, as extracted from the audited

financial statements, are as follows:
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2015 2014 2013 2012
SER-HE ZF-Ng SRS DR
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FuFrx  Frfrx Frfir FrTFi
Total assets R 198,972 206,836 216,184 180,351
Total liabilities A K 30,854 38,884 81,571 82,295
Non-controlling interests I ¥ ) e B £ 19,304 20,280 24,421 20,518
Equity attributable to AR ] Tk R A R 2
shareholders of the Company 148,814 147,672 110,192 77,538
198,972 206,836 216,184 180,351
Profit for the year A2\ R JE 3R M A 6 A
attributable to shareholders
of the Company 8,182 19,430 27,790 17,714

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 14
to the financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period
from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual

report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$15,437,000 (2014: US$21,683,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other

purposes amounting to US$132,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases attributable to the largest customer and
supplier accounted for 27% and 18% of the Group’s revenue and

purchases for the year ended 31 December 2015, respectively.

Revenue and purchases attributable to the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers accounted for 45% and 44% of the
Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31 December 2015,

respectively.

One of the five largest customers is an indirect subsidiary of Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)

had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont
Mr. Yao Minpu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe
(appointed on 23 October 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year, together with all
other Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer
themselves for re-election, at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 102(B), Mr. Yoichi lkezoe,
who was appointed as a non-executive Director on 23 October 2015,
will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 99, Mr. Thirayut
Phityaisarakul, Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi, and Mr. Surasak
Rounroengrom will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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EEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of

the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements of the
annual report, no Director had material interests, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a

party during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements of the
annual report, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
pages 36 and 37 of the annual report, at no time during the period
from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding in the

Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long
Positions)

A H
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B H% R %

S S A 0 2B AT ] PR A 2 ) B R A A 2 T
SH BB WA o

EERITETBRAERBEARQAARE AR
FENROREBRONESZRAR

PRI A= H o BRI R
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(a) EBRAQAFTNER (FR)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued ordinary

Number of ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company

Ao W AT

Pt 4 5 2 i 5 38 JBE Jise A

R AW 55 Jiz 4y 8t H B4 bk

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul Beneficial owner 410,000 0.17%
BB HaHEA A

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 625,848 0.26%
B R HEHEA A
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b)

Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b)
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

n

Bl

EERFTETBRAERERRAARE AR
EENRD RAAERGER KK (F)

ESRAQANEBEIENER (FR)

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. NEEIRE B R 23 7]

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of

Number of the associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

A0 H W6 3

OB AT IR A

HRALMW 54 Pt ¢ Jit 4 0 H BE# A 4 b

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul Beneficial owner 41,000,000 0.17%
BB HEEA A

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 62,584,807 0.26%
B3 R Y AR A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
ESHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FTERREBBEIFSRPERFREERT
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT HEZAEREZIXENAL
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE

UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (not being a director R _ZF—H4E+__H=Z+—H > BB HFH &GN
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and  #E336F M & AR A G HEZ B Ay 4 8 » Tk
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as A+ (JERA G MFEF L T EITHAR) RARAFH
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant &4y S AH B B Ay BEE U REZS iR BT ¢

to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares the issued ordinary

and underlying share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company
AL F AT
F R 00 B AR 0 38 1t It A
B 3 4 R Mt &4 JB 1 % H Waamik
(Note 1)
(Hi7E1)
Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Interest of controlled corporation 127,748,147 (L) 53.1 (L)
Company Limited e g R AR
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 127,748,147 (L) 53.1(L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation
BT N B 47 ) o R 25
CPF Investment Limited (3) Beneficial owner 115,137,370 (L) 47.8 (L)
EREAA
ITOCHU Corporation Beneficial owner 60,179,593 (L) 25.0 (L)
3SR 7S R gL XN
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EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited holds approximately
53.1% interest in the ordinary shares in issue of the Company by virtue
of its shareholding in Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”).

(3) CPF holds approximately 53.1% interests in the ordinary shares in
issue of the Company, which include (i) 12,610,777 preference shares
beneficially owned by CPF and (ii) 115,137,370 ordinary shares
beneficially owned by CPF’s wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment

Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 18 March 2015. The Share Option Scheme will remain
in force for 10 years from the date of listing on 3 July 2015.

The Share Option Scheme was established for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Share
Option Scheme include the Company’s directors, senior executives,
employees of the Group and those persons that, in the opinion of the

Directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the Group.
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Limited (“CPF”)¥EA B4 B HE Ifi £5 A A< A 5] © 84T
I BEA)53.1% °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 24,071,831 shares, being 10% of the
total number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of
listing on 3 July 2015.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was 24,071,831
ordinary shares, representing 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the

Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible person under the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors but shall commence after the grant and end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share

options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date of grant of the
share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
share of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the

holders to dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

As the date of this report, no option had been granted, exercised,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions that were subject to the Listing Rules’ reporting

requirement for disclosure in annual report.

Supply
CPP Master Supply Agreement

The master supply agreement dated 16 April 2015 (the “CPP Master
Supply Agreement”) was made between the Company and C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”) for the supply by the Group to CPP and
its subsidiaries (the “CPP Group”) of chlortetracycline and animal
drugs (including any antibiotics). The CPP Master Supply Agreement
took effect from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 and continued until
31 December 2017.

On 3 July 2015, Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(“CPF”), the controlling shareholder of CPP, which was interested
in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary share capital of CPP,
has also become the controlling shareholder of the Company with an
interest in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company. The transactions between the Group and the CPP
Group under the CPP Master Supply Agreement have therefore
become continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purposes of the Listing Rules. Details of the CPP Master Supply
Agreement have been set out in the section “Connected transactions”

in the Company’s listing document dated 17 June 2015.

For the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31 December
2015, the annual cap and the actual sales for the transactions

contemplated under the CPP Master Supply Agreement amounted to
US$5,993,000 and US$4,660,000 respectively.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)
HOEL Master Supply Agreement

The master supply agreement dated 16 April 2015 (the “HOEL Master
Supply Agreement”) was made between the Company and High
Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) for the supply by the Group to
HOEL and its subsidiaries (the “HOEL Group”) of chlortetracycline
and animal drugs (including any antibiotics). The HOEL Master
Supply Agreement took effect from the date of listing on 3 July 2015
and continued until 31 December 2017.

HOEL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, which as at the date of
this report was interested in approximately 43.4% of the issued share
capital of CPF. Because of its near majority shareholding in CPF, the
Company and CPG have agreed that CPG and its associates such as
HOEL would be regarded as connected persons of our Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the HOEL
Master Supply Agreement were treated as if they were continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the HOEL Master Supply Agreement have been set out
in the section “Connected transactions” in the Company’s listing
document dated 17 June 2015.

For the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31 December
2015, the annual cap and the actual sales for the transactions

contemplated under the HOEL Master Supply Agreement amounted
to US$2,207,000 and US$1,033,000 respectively.

Listing Rules Compliance

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company
is regarded as having complied with the relevant announcement,
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules from time to time.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which completed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the

Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 178, every Directors shall be

indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or
existed during the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31
December 2015.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the period from the date of listing on 3
July 2015 to 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the period from the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate

Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The establishment of the Audit Committee
serves to enhance corporate governance practices. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control. The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements prior to the publication of the

interim and final results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the requirement as to the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules during the period from
the date of listing on 3 July 2015 to the date of this report.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR & A

Report of the Directors
EEREE

AUDITORS ¥ BB

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors 5% B g €& 51 Bl S 55 P AF A 538 » —IE A B L i
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general B4 % % A< 2\ W] 4% 85 Bl Y e 36 5 1 % W i JBE o o) 48 Kk

meeting. TLERE -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD R

Thanakorn Seriburi HH

Director M

Hong Kong s

29 February 2016 ZER-ANEZAZ+TRA
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Independent Auditor’s Report

cblic

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chia
Tai Entperprises International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 126,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% BA 3R

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 February 2016
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEeETEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

2015 2014
ZE I ZE A
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t F L F E e n
REVENUE KA 5 101,767 117,131
Cost of sales 8 B A (67,807) (79,445)
Gross profit EEY | 33,960 37,686
Other income, net JE At e A\ 3 6 1,984 1,106
Selling and distribution costs BB K 4 B AR (6,713) (7,280)
General and administrative expenses TR B (17,467) (22,772)
Finance costs B 7 B AR 7 (921) (1,200)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A ¥ B B e 48
Joint venture HEAsE 1,229 11,640
Associate Wi 2 o w 18(a) 2,966 8,646
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B e i ¥ A1 8 15,038 27,826
Income tax B 4 Bt 11 (3,368) (4,226)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR YN | 11,670 23,600
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME fth 2 i Wi 4
[tems that are or may be reclassified O &R k4% W] e & BB 4
subsequently to profit or loss: BHMBZIEE
Exchange differences on translation of A b 3 S i 4 S5 RE
foreign operations Z MR (2,902) (865)
Share of other comprehensive income of: R Ay G A 2 VT WA A
Joint venture GEAE (3,230) (1,127)
Associate I 2 18(a) (814) (260)
Deregistration of a subsidiary FEE— FK M A - (225)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AR A B i 2 v W AR
FOR THE YEAR (6,946) (2,477)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7% 47 2 i W A A R
FOR THE YEAR 4,724 21,123
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEKRE R
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E _-F—HHE+_H=+—H L4

2015 2014
- Sl R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf & FF FLFo
Profit attributable to: e A Wl i 43 e T
Shareholders of the Company A 2 ] R 8,182 19,430
Non-controlling interests I 45 ) S 3,488 4,170
11,670 23,600
Total comprehensive income attributable to: T A AR T S LY
Shareholders of the Company PN/ 2,133 17,179
Non-controlling interests I e ) 1 M 2 2,591 3,944
4,724 21,123
US cents US cents
FE Al Al
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A2 W] Ji 3R HE A =2
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 3 Ji i #1 13
Basic and diluted 3 A % Wl 3.46 8.90

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the A4FEFEZ R BFFHERMBEREM 12N BE

financial statements.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

,ﬂ?c:,ji%ﬂﬁZRéﬁ

31 December 2015 —F—HAE+ZH=+—H

2015 2014
— HAE e S U2
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t PV an FEILFoT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B B A
Property, plant and equipment W~ R Kk 14 48,555 51,834
Land lease prepayments TEAF - Hh A S 2 15 2,918 1,038
Investments in joint venture RAEBEENIRE 17 68,443 70,444
Investments in associate W 2 A =) & 18 16,455 19,013
Other non-current assets HAb IR B & E 19 5,094 7,469
Total non-current assets #8JE R B 141,465 149,798
CURRENT ASSETS i B R
Inventories & 20 15,638 14,928
Trade and bills receivables JRE W B 5 Rk I 21 15,781 18,788
Prepayments, deposits and AR - ;FE%&
other receivables Al S B K 22 8,036 6,337
Cash and cash equivalents Bl & LBl &5 EY 23 18,052 16,985
Total current assets B B 57,507 57,038
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £ E
Trade payables FEAT © 5 Wk 24 3,084 4,884
Other payables and accruals J At JE A R K B T AR B 25 6,169 10,195
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 26 15,523 15,855
Income tax payables JRE A i 45 A 103 273
Total current liabilities 28 B A 24,879 31,207
NET CURRENT ASSETS B & 32,628 25,831
TOTAL ASSETS LESS 8 A I B £ 1
CURRENT LIABILITIES 174,093 175,629
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR D A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBAMRRE
31 December 2015 = F—HAE+ZH=+—H

2015 2014
- Sl R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf & FF FLFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B A
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 26 1,155 2,417
Other non-current liabilities HoA Ik 7 B A H 27 2,521 2,819
Deferred tax liabilities #E 4t A E A E 28 2,299 2,441
Total non-current liabilities #8 Ik  Bh A E 5,975 7,677
NET ASSETS A 168,118 167,952
EQUITY HE #3
Equity attributable to shareholders AR 2 ) B SR A HE 23
of the Company
Issued capital CBAT AR 29 25,333 1,195
Reserves k5 30 123,481 146,477
148,814 147,672
Non-controlling interests I 452 ) 1 A S 19,304 20,280
TOTAL EQUITY HE 73 #8 3R 168,118 167,952

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the W =ZF— N4 H 1 JuH AR 7] # 5 € fit e X%

Company on 29 February 2016. HET VLTI 8% -
Thanakorn Seriburi 2= £ # Thirayut Phityaisarakul 2% £ B
Director # Director # %
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E X f&© ¥ B A R 24 8

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=) HE >< 424
mAERg X
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A2 IR
PRC  Exchange Non-
Issued Capital reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
g J4E G BE KR Eacrilis

/23 Ml BlE2  BBRE ik o Wi s
Note  US§000  US$000  US§000  US$000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US$000
W# #rFr FErTx FrTxk  ExXTx  FExTx EiFx EATL ELT
(note 29) (note 30 (b)) (note 30 (c)) (note 30 (d))
(MFE29) (k30 (b)) (MHRE30(c)) (HFRE30 (d)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-H4E—A—H 1,19 26475 12,156 15,785 92,060 147672 20280 167952
Profit for the year TREF - - - - 8,181 8,182 3488 11,670

Other comprehensive income R A2

for the year:

Exchange differences on translation  AMUEB R ERZ

of foreign operations B %H - - - (2,005) - (2,005) (897) (2,902)
Share of other comprehensive TEAG JCf 2 s
income of:
Joint venture FEEE - - - (310 - (320 - (310
Associate BaAT - - - (814) - (814) - (814)
Total comprehensive income B R
for the year - - - (6,049) 8,182 2,133 2,591 4724
Shares issued pursuant to REEALBTRA
capitalisation issue 29 24,138 - - - (5,328) 18,810 - 18,810
Acquisition of subsidiaries WOEER AR T 2
under common control B 2 7 1 - (15,317) - - - (15317) - (15,317)
Dividend declared DEREE 12 - - - - (4,171) (4,171) - (4,171)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 3 fF T3k # il
equity holders Mg FE A AR - - - - - - (3,567) (3,567)
Common control acquisition T w4
by an associate - (313) - - - (313) - (313)
Transfer in/(out) A/ () - - 991 - (991) - - -
At 31 December 2015 S T Y g 25,333 10,845 13,147 9736 89753 148814 19304 168,118
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ BER DA

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E _-F—HHE+_H=+—H L4

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A2 IR
PRC  Exchange Non-
Issued Capital reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
g Bk G BE KR E3er s

2 B BEEE  WEGE M L B HEAE
Nore  US§000  USF000  USS'000  USFO00  USS'000  USFO00  US§'000  USH000

W# #riFr FErTx FrTxi  ExXTx  FELTx EiFx EATL ELTa

(note 29) (note 30 (b)) (note 30 (c)) (note 30 (d))

(MFE29) (k30 (b)) (HHRE30(c)) (HFRE30 (d)
At 1 January 2014 RZF—NE—~H—H 1,19 (3,618) 11258 18,033 834 110192 WA BB
Profit for the year AR - - - - 19,430 19430 4,170 23,600

Other comprehensive income R 2

for the year:

Exchange differences on translation  AMBEB R ERZ

offoreign operations B %H - - - (639) - (639) (226) (865)
Share of other comprehensive FEAGSCf 2 s
income of:
Joint venture TREE - - - - (L) -
Associate BaAT - - - (260) - (260) - (260)
Deregistration of a subsidiary AR ME A - - (13) (225) 13 (225) - (225)
Total comprehensive income LR AIEE Y
for the year - - (13) (2,51) 19,443 17,179 3,944 21,123
Dividend declared CHERKA 12 - - - - (9813)  (9,813) - (9,813)
Dividend paid to non-controlling A P I il i
equity holders MR AR S - - - - - - (8,064) (8,064)
Change in non-controlling interests 3¢ E I MM 25 5 3) - - 3 3 15 1 (21) -
Deemed contribution arising M B A I
from an equity transfer Bl 1 - 30,003 - - - 30,003 - 30,093
Transfer in/(out) BA/ (1) - - 908 - (908) - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MEFZ=1—H 1,195 16475 12,156 15,185 92,061 147,672 20,280 167,952
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E X f&© ¥ B AR 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= 3 =
?ﬁ/‘ﬁ é EE ﬁ /Jili ==} %‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

2015 2014
RN R
Note US$’000 US$’000
i3 B n FL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWHHIHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 53 56 iy ¥z Al 15,038 27,826
Adjustments for: B
Bank and other interest income SRAT B F A R BN 6 (17) (83)
Amortisation of government grant UG il B 4 5 (173) (172)
Finance costs 7 B AR 7 921 1,200
Write down of inventories R 8 48 309
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wk BERRMHEZE S 5,394 5,437
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAY 1 b B 2 R g 8 44 34
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BFE K&
plant and equipment, net R(aR) R 8 (30) 151
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary A KM EARZWEE 6 - (225)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A i P K e 48
Joint venture HEME (1,229) (11,640)
Associate R/ | 18(a) (2,966) (8,646)
17,030 14,191
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FREEm), WA (1,419) 4,710
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JRE Wt 5 5 Wk %
bills receivables WA (B ) 2,175 (944)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and AR - ZE& K
other receivables LAt JRE WS K Bk A 1,007 4,751
Decrease in trade payables JE A 81 55 Rk il A (1,584) (2,585)
(Decrease)/increase in other JL Atk JRE A R K %
payables and accruals TR A A, B (2,300) 2,659
Cash generated from operations R Y - B 14,909 22,182
Interest paid [EXRE PSS (1,056) (1,342)
Income tax paid ST B (3,983) (4,558)
Net cash flows from operating activities RBFEHMBZ
Bl & i BB 9,870 16,882
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRSRER
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E R —HE " H =+ — H ILFJE
2015 2014
RN Bt 111 F2 S
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt B n Fr T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREFH B ERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEE ¥ W KR (4,425) (4,800)
Government grant received W B B - 1,942
Dividends received from associate W B % 2 ] B B 1,357 1,726
Proceeds from disposal of property, WEWE - BE R
plant and equipment 5 T A5 K TH 179 32
Interest received By &iIpsS 17 83
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEWHHMAZ
&R T H (2,872) (1,017)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ol 3 B 2 Bl
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT A 3K P A5 B 25,916 18,142
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 3R B AT 1 K (26,714) (22,171)
Dividend paid to non-controlling AT T I Fe ) 2R
equity holders FrA AR B (4,859) (5,203)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEB I Z
Bl & 2 (5,657) (9,232)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBREEHED
CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 m 34 1,341 6,633
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4EFZ B & KRB &ZHHEY 16,985 10,491
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A BE 3 5% B) 2 5% B (274) (139)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBEEFHD
AT END OF YEAR 23 18,052 16,985
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company and its subsidiaries hereinafter are collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The Group and its joint venture
and associate were involved in (i) manufacturing and sale of
chlortetracycline products; (ii) trading of machinery; and (iii)

manufacturing and sale of automotive parts.

The directors consider the immediate holding company of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 11 June
2015 in preparation for the listing of the Company’s ordinary
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became
the holding company of all of its subsidiaries. The Company’s
ordinary shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 July

2015.

The Company acquired the entire equity interests of Chia Tai
Pucheng Biochemistry Limited (“Chia Tai Pucheng”) and Chia
Tai Huazhong Biochemistry Limited (“Chia Tai Huazhong”)
from C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”) on 11 June 2015 for a
total consideration of US$15,317,000. As the Company, Chia
Tai Pucheng and Chia Tai Huazhong were controlled by CPP
before and after the reorganisation, there was a continuation
of risks and benefits to CPP and the reorganisation has been
accounted for as a restructuring of entities under common
control in accordance with the principles of merger basis
of accounting. The consideration of US$15,317,000 in
connection with the acquisition of Chia Tai Pucheng and Chia
Tai Huazhong from CPP are recorded within equity as deemed
distribution arising from the reorganisation. Details of the
reorganisation are set out under the section headed “History
and Corporate Structure” in the listing document (the “Listing
Document”) of the Company dated 17 June 2015.
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1

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As at 1 January 2014, the Company held a 55% indirect
equity interest in Luoyang Northern Ek Chor Motorcycle
Company Limited (“Luoyang Motorcycle”) through its wholly
owned subsidiary, Ek Chor Investment Company Limited (“Ek
Chor Investment”). Luoyang Motorcycle was engaged in the
manufacture and sale of motorcycle in the PRC. The Company
transferred its entire equity interest in Ek Chor Investment
and an interest-free shareholder loan to Ek Chor Investment
of US$11,407,000 to Rapid Thrive Limited, a subsidiary of
CPP, at a consideration of US$41,500,000 on 12 May 2014.
The combined financial statement for the year ended 31
December 2014 excluded the Company’s interests in Ek Chor
Investment and Luoyang Motorcycle. The difference between
the consideration of US$41,500,000 and the loan assignment
of US$11,407,000, being US$30,093,000 is recorded within
equity as a deemed contribution arising from the transfer of
Ek Chor Investment. The consideration receivable was offset
against the amount due to CPP during the year ended 31
December 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using

consistent accounting policies.

B AR L

2.1
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”), and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars. On or before 30 June 2015, the functional currency
of the Company was Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). After
reorganisation as explained in note 1, the major business
transactions in terms of operating, investing and financing
activities are now primarily in US$. As such, effective from 1
July 2015, the Company has changed its functional currency
from HK$ to US$. The change in functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from date of change in
accordance with the requirements set out in IAS 21 “The
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates”. On the date of
the change of functional currency, all assets, liabilities, issued
capital and other components of equity and profit and loss
account items were translated into US$ at the exchange rate
on that date. These financial statements are prepared on the

historical cost basis.
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs

that have significant effect on these financial statements and

major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of IFRSs
[FRSs 20102012 Cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of [FRSs

[FRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments to IFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current year.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the

Group:

[FRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

IFRS 16 Leases®

Amendment to [FRS 10 Amendment to [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial

and IAS 28 Statements and 1AS 28 Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture'

Amendments to [FRS 11 Amendments to [FRS 11 Joint Arrangements —

Amendments to [AS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and [AS 38

Annual Improvements to
[FRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations'

Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Disclosure initiative'

Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amoritisation'

Amendments to a number of [FRSs'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
amendments to IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
these financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing these financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented, in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2.4(h) or
(i) depending on the nature of the liability.

BER DA

24 FEESTHREE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture (see note

2.4(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2.4(e)).
Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions. Significant influence is presumed to exist
when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the

voting power of another entity.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimoius consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’

returns.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associate and joint venture (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in these financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2.4(e)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other

comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Associate and joint venture (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as

the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Other Property, plant and equipment

Items of other property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.4(e)):

(i) buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases (see note 2.4(d)); and

(ii)  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of other property,

plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,

direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an

appropriate proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (see note 2.4(q)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of other property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Other Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of items of other property, plant and
equipment to their estimated residual value over the
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%
9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities

Where parts of an item of other property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.
Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China. Land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;
o it becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

o a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:
Investments in associate and joint venture

When they accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2.4(b)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2.4(e)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with note 2.4(e)(ii).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Trade and other current receivables and other

financial assets carried at amortised cost

The impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivable, whose recovery is

considered doubtful but not remote.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and bills receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:
° property, plant and equipment;
o Landlease prepayments classified as

being held under an operating lease; and

o investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in

use (if determinable).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

f)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

U]

1)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2.4(e)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2.4(m), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at cost.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash

flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the
PRC government, subsidiaries of the Group
in mainland China are required to make
specific contributions to the state-controlled
retirement plan at rates not more than 20%
(the percentage to be determined by each of
the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries
of the employees in mainland China. Certain
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities
are overburdened by the pension insurance due
to higher number of retired people, it is required
to make specific contributions at rates higher
than 20% (the percentage to be determined
by each of the government of the provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities) of the
total salaries of the employees upon approval
of the ministry of labour and the ministry of
finance. The PRC government is responsible for
the pension liability to the retired employees.
The employees of the subsidiaries are entitled
to a monthly pension at their retirement dates.
The subsidiaries have no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual

contributions.
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(k)

(1

BERA ()

(iii) B ERE B ()

e v B BORE IR B > A SR R
PN PN ki PN
BB T THEZHEFEABB20%
(HBE2tbHsE BB E
BE N RN W E) 1E R
ok 130 KA BB AR A1 4R R
LK o WA - HIGEEA
BT BB AR A 2 > B E R
W B E R - 855 B R M
HWEMBEIGBEBE T T EH
Bz Bi20% (R E 4 i
%4 BIREE AT A RB
I e sE) 1B % ds gk o p
5 SO ORF €1 A AR AR B T8 TBOR AR
4 o WHE AR B TR Rk A%
B H WBUR IR 4 o B R4 6t
A o Wi A ) R KR 2 AR
A L At R 9 o

Frigm

A BT B 155 5 90 A5 I e 2 S B JE
7 LR AR A S ) o I B I SR
B T A B A Y 5 B 35 A6 25
b o v 52 o BRLAE L A 2 T WAL 2 L
B R R A IE B AR > AR
0 T 4 9 A i Al A T W 25 B A%
TP 2 v R o

9158 T A P B SRR O ) YT
FEBLIE > $R F Y Hh J9OR © A K s
HO A RO B RG> DA ROt 4R
J3E M A AL TELARE ) o e 2 o

-2 -1 F F #

71



72

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are:

(i) the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination); and

(ii)  temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

(ii) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other payables and accruals.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2.4(n) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other
payables and accruals in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(iv)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation

expense.
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the entities now
comprising the Group denominated in currencies other
than US$ are translated into US$, the presentation
currency of the Group, using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive

income and in equity in exchange fluctuation reserve.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:
(a) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)

(ii)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following accounting judgments

and estimates:

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

As explained in note 2.4(c), the Group depreciates
its property, plant and equipment on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, and after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, at rates
ranging from 2% to 33.33% per annum, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment are
available for use. The estimated useful lives reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use

of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

3

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As explained in note 2.4(e)(ii), the impairment loss
for property, plant and equipment is recognised for
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount when events or changes in
circumstance indicate the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amount of the assets, or,
where appropriate, the cash generating unit to which
they belong, is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
which are based on the best information available
to reflect the amount obtainable at the reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties,
after deducting the costs of disposal. For the estimation
of value in use, the Group’s management estimates
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Write down of inventories

As explained in note 2.4(f), the management of the
Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product by product basis at each reporting
date and makes allowances for obsolete items.

Impairments of trade receivables

As explained in note 2.4(e)(i), the policy for provision
for impairment loss of the Group’s trade receivables is
based on the evaluation of collectability and the aging
analysis of the trade receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to

make payments, additional allowances may be required.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has two

reportable operating segments:

° the biochemical segment is engaged in the manufacture

and sale of chlortetracycline products; and

o the industrial segment is engaged in trading of
machinery and the manufacture and sale of automotive

parts, through the Group’s joint venture and associate.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income, finance
costs and items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate administration

expenses are excluded from such measurements.

Segment assets exclude unallocated corporate assets.
Unallocated corporate assets include cash and cash
equivalents, income tax recoverable and other assets that are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities include bank borrowings,
income tax payables and deferred tax liabilities and other

liabilities that are managed on a group basis.

As a result of the change in the structure of the Group’s
internal organisation, the composition of the Group’s
reportable segments has been changed. Certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to current period’s
presentation and to provide comparative amount in respect of

items disclosed in current year.
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments

The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and

certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information

for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Year ended 31 December 2015

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers

Segment results

The Group

Share of profits and losses of:
Joint venture

Associate

Reconciliation:
Bank interest income
Finance costs

Unallocated head office and

corporate expenses
Profit before tax
Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure*

g BB A
BT RE R

o R
ARSI
M A 4

fERsk

T oy vl

W H
BATH S A

S B IR A

AR G5 TE A8 B A 3 BH 32

W At i i A

At 3 JUE R
I8 % 4
A B 5

Including additions to property, plant and equipment.
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T EE - BREPFER -

BEZZ AT A=+ —HIE4E

Biochemical Industrial

operations operations Total
A AL B TEE k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
BV n B B/ n
101,767 — 101,767
14,461 (1,794) 12,667
- 1,229 1,229
- 2,966 2,966
14,461 2,401 16,862
17
(921)
(920)
15,038
5,420 18 5,438
4,560 — 4,560

* WIEYIE ~ B Pe i Z B3 o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

At 31 December 2015

Biochemical Industrial
operations operations Total
A AL T k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
F T Bk o E 7
Segment assets Vi g 90,311 90,185 180,496
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Unallocated corporate assets R4y HL A H A 18,476
Total assets B 198,972
Segment liabilities 4y AR 11,721 17 11,738
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR 4>t 4 3 £ {& 19,116
Total liabilities FER= Ry 30,854
Other segment information 3 Atb 43 28 % B
Investments in joint venture REBEEENRE - 68,443 68,443
Investments in associate R AR R ERE - 16,455 16,455
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)

(a) Reportable operating segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

Segment revenue Vg LN

Sales to external customers HETHRE

Segment results 43 JH 3 A

The Group NG

Share of profits and losses of: R A 6 B B e 4R
Joint venture BBk
Associate iR A |

Reconciliation: WEIEE -

Bank interest income AT R S WA

Finance costs 0 # R AR

Unallocated head office and Ao L A B A 3B X
corporate expenses

Profit before tax o 5t i ¥4 )

Other segment information I At 43 28 & B

Depreciation and amortisation - WS ¥

Capital expenditure* AR B S

* Including additions to property, plant and equipment.
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BEZFWET A=t —HILEE

Biochemical Industrial

operations operations Total
AL THEH ok i)
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
S n T e on
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (H %) (FE )
117,131 - 117,131
16,962 (2,149) 14,813
- 11,640 11,640
. 8,646 8,646
16,962 18,137 35,099
55

(1,200)

(6,128)
27,826
5,450 21 5,471
4,941 1 4,942

* B ~ W5 B Z R -
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

At 31 December 2014

Biochemical Industrial

operations operations Total

He AL BB T A

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

FrLTx FrLTx FLTo

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E ) (FE ) (FE )

Segment assets SEEE 96,697 92,413 189,110
Reconciliation: WEEE

Unallocated corporate assets A 43 T A 3E 17,726

Total assets W 206,836

Segment liabilities A 15,336 - 15,336
Reconciliation: WEEE

Unallocated corporate liabilities AR 4> HE 4> 3% £ & 23,548

Total liabilities =R 38,884

Other segment information 3L Atb 43 2 % B
Investments in joint venture REEAENRE - 70,444 70,444
Investments in associate A RN R 4 — 19,013 19,013
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (E)
(continued)
(b) Geographical information (b)y HWEEF
(i) Revenue from external customers () RESPKEFZKA
2015 2014
G- S ¥ ZE N4
US$’000 US$’000
FoFi FoL T
Mainland China e N 23 22,545 37,473
United States of America 3¢5
(“United States”) 27,572 26,720
Asia Pacific (excluding H K H [ (S £ 555 A K )
mainland China) 26,436 24,046
Europe [k BN 8,882 5,050
Elsewhere e Ath 3 gy 16,332 23,842
101,767 117,131
The revenue information shown above is based EFV A E R T %% P A
on the location of customers. A3 o

(i) Non-current assets

At 31 December 2015, 99% (2014: 99%) of
the Group’s non-current assets are located in

mainland China.

(c) Information about major customers (c)

The Group has one customer (2014: one) located in the
United States with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of Group’s revenue during the year ended 31
December 2015. Revenue from this customer, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be
under common control with this customer amounted to
approximately US$27,072,000 (27% of total revenue)
(2014: US$26,100,000 (22% of total revenue)).
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Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1+—HILEE
REVENUE 5 KA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the We A > ARk AL 2 2 SR > IR IS ERL X
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value- BORMHmE: > XMBEBRERESITEZ R
added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for TEO BB mE MAEEZWAY KA -
goods returned and trade discounts. All of the Group’s revenue ¥ -
is from the biochemical segment.
OTHER INCOME, NET 6 H At g A F 58
An analysis of other income, net is as follows: H AW A F# BT -
2015 2014
BN R —A
US$’000 US$’000
BV in FL T
Bank interest income HRATH BB A 17 55
Other interest income H A A B A - 28
Government grants BT #l B 403 500
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEwE - BER
plant and equipment, net B Es (s 1) E A 30 (151)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary R — A B 2 R CA - 225
Foreign exchange differences, net AW T % B 1,172 -
Others H Aty 362 449
1,984 1,106
FINANCE COSTS 7 B 3% B AR
2015 2014
e S K2 e e UKi S
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve F T T T
Interest expense on bank borrowings AT 2 F S 2 1,056 1,342
Less: Interest expense capitalised™* W AR AR (135) (142)
921 1,200

* The interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 6.0% per
annum (2014: 5.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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8

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R

8

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Write down of inventories
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Amortisation of land lease prepayments

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

Minimum lease payments of
leasehold land and properties
under operating lease

Auditors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments — note 9)
Wages, salaries and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

Foreign exchange differences, net

O 5 7 B A
EEtE L]
iz P
T R B
B - BB R
¢ i (W Ak ) e 5 13
MEL B RHEZ
REMEZREHE
bk 4
A% S i T <
D 5 A 1 52

(G5 3 & — B 5E9)
T¥ -~ Hie LIRSS

1B A 4 it sk
S T 55 2 LA

n

A 55 M B R A R B  GiEA) T A&

3

B A %= R
JH :

2015

—E e

Note US$’000

M e an

67,759

48

14 5,394

15 44

(30)

382

155

15,158

656

(1,172)

2014
e kS
US$’000
KL T

79,136
309

5,437
34

151

390
124

15,096
592
371
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B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEXEMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) HIBEE A BRG] E383 (DR A AT (T
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of M 2GR B R AR E - I A bk
the Companies (Disclosure Information about Benefits of T :
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
Salaries,
allowances,
and Retirement
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Bim -
HEH K&
e FBemE WA BRIRSNH ok
Note Uss’o0o Uss'000 Uss 000 Uss’00o Us$ 000

Wit FErtr o ErTr ErTx FL T FrTx

Year ended 31 December 2015 BKEZZ-1H
FEAEF R

Chairman and non-executive director: # % KT HESF :

M. Soopakij Chearavanont LELS RS (iii) - - - - -

Executive directors: AfEE:

M. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BEEEE (ii) - - - - -

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi S HE i - 532 - - 532

Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont ARNEA (v) - - - - -

Mr. Yao Minpu RN A (ii) - 299 226 - 525

- 831 226 - 1,057

Non-executive directors: FOTEE

M. Yoichi Ikezoe R EE— S (i) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B FEHATH S :

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom & 4 (iv) 15 - - - 15

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo WA A (iv) 15 - - - 15

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward i R JE A (iv) 15 - - - 15
45 - - - 45

Total directors’ emoluments %$M$ k) 45 831 226 - 1,102
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E _-F—HHE+_H=+—H L4
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 BEEME (E)
Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
M
I R
e EREMR W BRIRAHE ok
Note Uss 000 Uss 000 Us$’ 000 Uss 000 Us$ 000
Wit FrxFr FrFr FLFr FrxFr FLFr
Year ended 31 December 2014 REZZ-%
FIZAZF—HIREE
Chairman and non-executive director: # % REBIT#ESH
M. Soopakij Chearavanont ;ENRE (iii) - - - - -
Executive directors: &S
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BB EE (ii) - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi ZMRELE = 532 113 - 645
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont WA (v) - - 143 - 143
M:t. Yao Minpu RAMEA (i) - - - - -
- 532 156 - 788
Directors: #H:
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho IRES ¥ (vi) - - - - -
Mr. Prasertsak Ongwattanakul AR (vii) - 13 - - 13
- 13 - - 13
Independent non-executive directors: B FHfTHT :
M. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom % (iv) - - - - -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo e A (iv) - - - - -
Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward ELiE (iv) - - - - -
Total directors’ remuneration EHW A - 545 156 - 801
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed as non-executive director on 23 October 2015.
(ii) Appointed as executive directors on 15 September 2014.

(iii)

Appointed as non-executive director on 15 September 2014.

(iv) Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 15
September 2014.

(v) Appointed as executive director on 22 July 2014.

(vi) Resigned as director on 15 September 2014.

(vii)  Resigned as director on 22 July 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors of the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of office (2014: nil),
and there was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments (2014: nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2014: one) directors. Details of the emoluments are set out in
note 9 above. The emoluments (including salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind) of the remaining three (2014: four) non-
directors, was approximately US$751,000 (2014: US$883,000)
in total.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is set out below:

US$128,001 to US$192,000
(equivalent to HK$1,000,001
to HK$1,500,000)

US$192,001 to US$256,000
(equivalent to HK$1,500,001
to HK$2,000,000)

US$256,001 to US$320,000
(equivalent to HK$2,000,001
to HK$2,500,000)

1,500,000 7T )

2,000,000%7t)

2,500,000 7))

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
employees of the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group as compensation for loss of office (2014:

nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 7% R & M

Year ended 31 December 2015 £ =% — T4+ H =+ — H L4 %

11 INCOME TAX 11 FEH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the 2 S [ P A AR R A AR T U T B 4T E SRR
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in We A > B DLAR A ARAE P9 4 7 A 2 B i 4 (=
Hong Kong during the year (2014: nil). YL ) o
The subsidiaries operating in mainland China are subject to R 48 v B £ 3 BT A BB 5 7 K e AR 4
income tax at the rate of 25% (2014: 25%) on their taxable 2 Wi B o 7] 5 R B I A R R 25% (—
income according to the PRC corporate income tax laws F—Y4E £ 25%) B PR HRL o M I 2 A1
during the year. In accordance with the relevant tax rules and B B S B T ) AR T RS o I 2 2 T
regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries of the Group in J& 2 B A R B R T A R o

the PRC enjoy various income tax exemptions or reductions.

2015 2014
I Sl 2 SR A
US$’000 US$’000
FL T By n
Current — mainland China p: NG PN
Charge for the year A X 3,385 4,771
Under-provision in prior years A FHR 124 10
Deferred (note 28) BIE(H FE28) (141) (555)
Total tax expense for the year AR AR P B I 4 3 Y 3,368 4,226
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12

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R

2~ H

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=+—HILF)¥

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for mainland China in which the

Group principally operates to the tax expense is as follows:

11

FriEwt (|)

e K e (A4 0 2 B R M) MY kS B
GG R W i A A B0 B 2 A BB I
BRI HERWT

2015 2014
R hA R4
US$’000 US$’000
BV in FL T
Profit before tax o Bt Tl 9 A1) 15,038 27,826
Tax expense on profit before tax, e o B A 3E AR BE AL 3 25% &K
calculated at the PRC corporate [k A58 Tl i ) 5 4R ) L S
income tax rate of 25% 3,759 6,957
Lower tax rates enacted by i 58 Hb i B R AR 2 MR B
local tax authority (1,362) (1,647)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% i A 4 [ s o R K e 2 B RS A WD~
on the distributable profit of the B8 A 36 K8 A ) A 4y ISR T
Group’s subsidiaries, joint venture FHE SRL10% Z 5
and associate in mainland China 956 1,637
Under-provision in prior years AR B A R 124 10
Profits and losses attributable to JEAY s A R N )
joint venture and associate i K1) B e 48 (1,049) (5,072)
Income not subject to tax £ T N - (116)
Expense not deductible for tax AW B S 940 2,457
Tax expense at the Group’s AR E A BB
effective tax rate FF S B X 3,368 4,226
DIVIDENDS 12 BRE

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to
declare dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
nil).

Prior to the reorganisation, on 30 April 2015, Chia Tai
Huazhong and Chia Tai Pucheng, the then directly-
owned subsidiaries of CPP declared interim dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2015 of US$2,010,000 (2014:
US$5,770,000) and US$2,161,000 (2014: US$4,043,000)
respectively to CPP. The dividend per share and the number
of shares ranking for dividends are not presented as such
information is not considered meaningful for the purpose of

these financial statements.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

E X &© ¥ 8 B EHR QA

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13

TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

following data:

ARFRREMSE 28 REF

o B AR R B B AT LR A 4 R BER
B A AR 45 € ¥ R e 47 9 B8 AT 2 5 0 Jie e T
I 85 5 B T S 3 B

38 ZSIPELIS IV € T

2015 2014
I S S ZR A
US$’°000 US$’000
F L F T FoLF oL
Earnings i 7
Profit for the year attributable to PSS I B AR A 2
shareholders of the Company, AR 2 ] T A AT JRE A 163
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 8,182 19,430
2015 2014
SRR ZEF N
Number of ordinary shares and W 3 it e T e it B S i
convertible preference shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January Fr—H—H B 817235 m Mk 11,952,000 11,952,000
Effect of ordinary shares issued by way of A 95 A< 2 ] 5 41 M A AR 28 A Y
capitalisation of the consideration FEAT I e 455 B i AR AL
payable by the Company to CPP Bz BEERZ R
pursuant to the reorganisation 153,169,499 153,169,499
Effect of ordinary shares issued by way of A& —T4E N H Z+JuH AT
capitalisation of the remaining amount I W R R R R B AL
due to CPP on 29 June 2015 Bz hmpz e 17,797,047 -
Effect of ordinary shares and convertible — #7 43 Fii F ¥ H & AL 317 2
preference shares issued by way of W3 e B v R R B e 2 B
capitalisation out of the
retained earnings 53,283,275 53,283,275
Adjusted weighted average number of F A w1 S I e AR s A 2
ordinary shares and convertible AR CBEAT Z 0% B %
preference shares in issue during A 46 B 56 I AR e
the year, used in the basic earnings JnRE - 4 8
per share calculation 236,201,821 218,404,774

As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the amount of diluted
earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2015 E _F—HAE T _H=+—HILFEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE-HBERFZE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Industrial Plant and and office  and transport  Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities ~ in progress Total
ki~ %H Bk
TERT  RERES  RELRH  EERE TRLE it
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US$'000
Wit Fnfrn  Frnfrx  Fxfr  Fxfr  Fifr  Fifx
(note(a)) (note(a)) (note(b))
(W () (i () (D))
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-THE—A—H:
Cost A 32,110 66,271 5,124 1,508 1,631 107,244
Accumulated depreciation REHTEE R
and impairment (10,562) (40,596) (3,487) (765) - (55,410)
Net carrying amount W 0 21,548 25,675 2,237 43 1,631 51,834
Net carrying amount: T 4
At 1 January 2015 REZZ—1E—~f—H 21,548 25,675 2,237 43 1,631 51,834
Additions HE 321 1,375 212 57 2,595 4,560
Depreciation provided during WM #
the year 8 (1,351) (3,514) (268) (261) - (5,394)
Transfer in(out) #A/(Hh) 108 680 279 - (1,067) -
Disposals ik - (115) (2) (32) - (149)
Exchange realignment EE Jt 3 2 (954) (1,137) (99) (34) (72) (2,296)
At 31 December 2015 REF-RELZA=F—H 19,672 22,964 2,359 473 3,087 48,555
At 31 December 2015: REB-HEFZA=Z—0R:
Cost BA 31,118 65,140 5,946 1,330 3,087 106,621
Accumulated depreciation REH e g
and impairment (11,446) (42,176) (3,587) (857) - (58,066)
Net carrying amount ke 19,672 22,964 2,359 473 3,087 48,555

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F #



96

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

14

&

ES

BB ER LA

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE-BRERZE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Industrial Plant and and office  and transport ~ Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
ff %8 HHR
TEMT  RERES  RRARG  EESE  FRIR it
Note US§000 US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$000
Wit #rfr  Fxfr  Exfx  FExTx  FExTx FExlx
(note(a)) (note(a)) (note(b))
(Wit (a) (W ik (a) (b))
At 1 January 2014: REZZ-WE—~HA—H "
Cost AR 29,903 64,339 6,036 1,879 33818 105,975
Accumulated depreciation REHTE R
and impairment (9,354) (38,450 (3,784) (1,039) - (52,627)
Net carrying amount I T 20,549 15,889 2,250 840 3,818 53,348
Net carrying amount: JRT A -
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—N4%E—~H—H 20,549 25,889 2,15 840 3,818 53,348
Additions KE 335 1,442 203 114 2,348 4,942
Depreciation provided during ~ 4F WM R 47 &
the year 8 (1,334) (3,580) (21) (251) - (5,437)
Transfer in/(out) WA 2276 2,510 9] 53 (4,990) -
Disposals ik (6) (163) (14) - - (183)
Exchange realignment 3 2 (1) (483) (23) (13) (45) (836)
At 31 December 2014 REZ-WEFZH=4H 21,548 15,675 2137 143 1,631 51,834
At 31 December 2014: REF-WEFZH=Z4—H
Cost A 32,110 66,271 5,124 1,508 1,631 107,244
Accumulated depreciation RAHITE o
and impairment (10,562) (40,596) (3,487) (765) - (55,410)
Net carrying amount T 7 f 11,548 15,675 137 3 1,631 51,834
Notes: iz
(a) At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s industrial (a) N B —HE+H=1+—H » REHERD

buildings and plant and machinery in mainland China with
carrying amounts of US$3,616,000 (2014: US$4,585,000)

were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group

(note 26(a)).

(b) Ownership certificates of certain properties with an aggregate (b)
carrying amount of US$1,175,000 (2014: US$1,295,000) at 31
December 2015 are yet to be obtained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥
15 FENTHHEEE

LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

2015 2014
“E LA ZR 4
Note US$’000 US$’000
K ik By n B nan
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— H R A 1,085 1,124
Additions NE 2,012 -
Amortisation provided during the year AR N T PR Y (44) (34)
Exchange realignment FEE 5o, 3 %% (91) (5)
Carrying amount at 31 December P A=+ —HRHEHE 2,962 1,085
Current portion included in BEREMNIRR - ZER
prepayments, deposits and Al JRE MR K =2 R B B 43
other receivables (44) (47)
Non-current portion I i B R 4 2,918 1,038
Note: A

(a) At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
US$486,000 (2014: US$525,000) were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 26(a)).
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K &

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

16

ES

BB AR D

16

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost. Particulars of the

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name
AR

Pucheng Chia Tai Biochemistry
Co., Ltd. (Notes (i) and (ii))

THRIE R AELA R A
(Mt (i) (i)

Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai
Co., Ltd. (Notes (i) and (iii))

Bk G 5 3 oh IR KA R4 A
(Mt (i) R (i)

Notes:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

ALY R
B

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
B

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital
C#fT R

2800 e AR T

RMB 189,890,000

189,890,000 A R %

RMB 72,000,000
72,000,000 A\

(i) The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English

name is for identification purpose only.

(ii) Registered as a sino-foreign joint venture under the PRC law.

(iii)  Registered as a foreign enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the

Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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I 24 0 B TS e A BN 4 4 T
B2 5 2 FEA T

(iii)

Percentage of

attributable equity

interest held by

Company Group
VEEAf ¢ 7 T BE T 43 L6

A2 AEH

- 69.7%

- 69.7%

Principal

activities

FEEH

Manufacturing
and sale of

chlortetracycline

EHEER

Manufacturing
and sale of

chlortetracycline

EHETR

W% H B E A AR A AR AR
A o

AL B A R A A

R4 e I A A1 T O 3 o

b B B R Z A 4 E A R s R
Fy > BEY B ESE R AN AR B A
B ER Ay o HEAE R o B BT A Al B
] B A EORL B BUR R R TR -
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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i ¥ B B AR DA

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 REELENER
2015 2014
“E—HAE R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t FL T E Sy
Investments in joint venture, WEERENRE
included in non-current assets: BERERBEEN :
Share of net assets JE A 3 (a) 68,443 70,444
Due from joint venture, included JE WA s A SR
in prepayments, deposits and BEREAIRK - &4
other receivables T L Al JFE WAL B ik 4 -
Interests in joint venture B A N RE R 68,447 70,444
Notes: Mt it

(a)

Summarised financial information of ECI Metro Investment

and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ECI Metro Group”),

adjusted for any differences in accounting policy, and a

reconciliation to the carrying amount in these financial

statements, are disclosed below:

Gross amounts of ECI Metro
Group’s:
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Equity

Included in the above assets
and liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents

VELEESL e
2 JE IR R
FE L Bl
LI R=L
i

N3 <9 Y =K

Bl RB &S0

(a) AL EFBOR A 2 B AR > S
WY 908 B D JL W Jag 2 v (A5 [ 50 0 WY a4
A1) 0 B R IR B > R A b 7 i A I MR

T E IR BB T

2015
SRR
US$’000

K TETTC

191,000
29,659
83,773

136,886

65,961

2014
R
US$’000
FETLF T

189,537
37,420
86,069

140,888

37,521
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K & ¥ B AE R A A
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 &£ R —H44AE+ A=+ —HILEE
17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 NEELENER (&
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Hat - (%)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)
2015 2014
~ER—HA ZR— A
US$’000 US$’000
F LTI E
Revenue KA 321,911 568,892
Profit from operations #8725 2,458 23,280
Other comprehensive income FC Al 2 T W AR (6,460) (2,254)
Total comprehensive income 2 T W 2 4 AR (4,002) 21,026
Included in the above profit: st A Bk A
Depreciation and amortisation P8 2% i 8 (4,012) (7,934)
Interest income FLE WA 372 827
Interest expense =Sl (306) (1,635)
Income tax expense iR (1,374) (10,126)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest BRA AR [ R 5 90 W R
in ECI Metro Group: HE 75 19 MR -
Gross amounts of ECI Metro 540 W 3 4 ] 44
Group’s net assets 136,886 140,888
Group’s effective interest ENCSUN-ESY 50% 50%
Carrying amount in the consolidated %z £ B %5 g 4 14 R 1 16
financial statements 68,443 70,444

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F #



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

17

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B W
Year ended 31 December 2015 E R —HHFETH=1—HIL4)E
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 REELENESR (F)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt - (4F)
(b) Particulars of the principal joint venture, which is indirectly (b) A A MR 2 R EAS AN
held by the Company, are as follows: T
Percentage of
FAADTL
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value Interest
registration of issued and attributable Profit Principal
Company name and operations paid-up capital to the Group sharing activities
GRS T Rk A 4
YAEZR o 235 0 It A i JRE A HE 55 JRE A ¥z A T
ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd. British Virgin US$12,000,000 50% 50% Investment
(“ECI Metro Investment”) Islands/ 12,000,0003 56 holding and
CEILIFE S g ] Hong Kong trading of
(TEMBE#RE ] I Ja e machinery and
T 5 75 6 spare parts
Ei'a gl
A K
ZHUHES
Since neither the Group nor its joint venture partner is in HAREFHFHEGESLOESB AR
a position to exercise unilateral control over the economic — PP AT RS > AEEHBEZ
activity of the entity, the Group’s interest therein are W BEREAN OB LENREZ -
classified as interest in joint venture.
ECI Metro Investment was established by the Group with 5701 W i 4 A AR ] — S A = g
an independent third party investor, to distribute Caterpillar B T o DA R Y E Hb I A4y 8 R R
products in the western part of the PRC. W o
ECI Metro Investment is an unlisted corporate entity whose 5o 1) W B s W T RS A R BT A
quoted market price is not available. ER g
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K &© ¥ B A& R 4 7
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 #& £ _F—H4E+ __H=+—HILEE
18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE 18 RELEQATMNERS
2015 2014
G- Sl T4 R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
P 5 FuFi RILTF o
Investments in associate, included RS AT MIE >
in non-current assets: BERIERBEEN :
Share of net assets JRE A (a) 16,455 19,013
Due from associate, included in JRE WA WG 2 O\ W) KA
prepayments, deposits and AR AT R
other receivables 122 4 e At JE WO HR K 5,239 2,890
Interests in associate T UG 2 O\ B O RE 25 21,694 21,903
Notes: Mfat :
(a) The Group has interests in associate which are regarded as (a) A 5 [ 7 3 e 4 5 5 A1 1) T A I A

not individually material. The following table summarises,

in aggregate, the financial information of the individually

immaterial associate that are accounted for using the equity

method:

Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements
Amounts of the Group’s share
of associate:
Profit from operations
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

e i R M
A4 1 2
5 e

0t 2 T Wi 2
2 Th YR 4 A

B o T A WAt DARE 5 325 51 i v 4 3
ORI 2 W B B RORL AT

2015
A
US$’000

K TE T T

16,455

2,966
(814)
2,152

2014
R
US$’000
FEILF T

19,013

8,646
(260)
8,386
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18 REEQATNER (B)
Notes: (continued) HiE : (%)
(b) Particulars of the principal associate, which is indirectly held (b) AR AR MR 2 ZEE S AR SRS
by the Company, are as follows: T
Percentage of
HAASL
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value Interest
registration of issued and attributable Profit Principal
Company name and operations paid-up capital to the Group sharing activities
GRLY R ST R A 45
GER B B 40 T3 A i L JRE A R A JRE A 263 A FEEH
Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle PRC/PRC US$21,250,000 28% 28% Manufacture
Parts Co., Ltd. ] e 21,250,000 50 and sale of
(formerly known automotive parts
as Zhangjiang B B R AL 1
Deni Carburetor
Co., Ltd.)
VL L8 ) B 5 1
R H
(I % VEE VT PR )
Akl 2% A IR A 7))
19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HttFERBEE
The Group’s other non-current assets as at 31 December 2015 REFPN B —HER _FNET+-H
and 2014 represent prepayments made for acquisition of land =+ — B WAl I B e N - H
use right. REW) FEAT IR 3K -
20 INVENTORIES 20 ®H
2015 2014
I s NS ZR— A
US$’000 US$’000
LT FLToc
Raw materials BB 2,730 3,146
Work in progress e 5 7,730 7,034
Finished goods BE B i 5,178 4,748
15,638 14,928
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR D A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 BRE R —HAET_H =+ —HIL4E )%
21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21 EBURESERIRERE
2015 2014
“E L4 ZR 4
US$’000 US$’000
F L F T FIL T T
Trade receivables JE W & 5 Bk 15,347 18,347
Bills receivable P R B 434 441
15,781 18,788
The Group normally grants to its customers a credit period of AEE - BRAETERZESENRE®AOH »
up to 60 days, depending on the requirements of the markets WA T I REBERNE o REFB LR
and the businesses. The Group seeks to maintain strict HE 2B B b 2 B e o 25 UG I8 & 8 FR b A
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances W 4ER > R RAEEZET LB
are reviewed regularly by management and interest may be Pl E M EEE - BEEER > RERY
charged by the Group for overdue trade receivable balances A0 AP BB o AS A E U R B IR Sk
at rates determined by the Group with reference to market REpgE BN (DL 8E 0 &)
practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no significant TF:
concentration of credit risk. An aging analysis of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables, based on the date of delivery of
goods, is as follows:
2015 2014
e S S e e 1Ki S
US$’000 US$’000
BV n FEL Tt
Trade and bills receivables: JEWR 5 MRk R R
60 days or below 60HE LT 13,439 13,907
61 to 180 days 61%180H 2,325 4,868
Over 180 days 2R 180H 17 13
15,781 18,788
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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E X &© ¥ 8 B &R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

21

FE U & 5 BR X

Hik :

RE (&)

AR 2 ZEAT Hh A 2 B M S MRk e
RIRE AT

2015 2014

D S K ZR 4

US$’000 US$’000

#L Tt FL T

Neither past due nor impaired A B 5] 2R Ik 10,925 14,479
180 days or below past due WA 180H 4,840 4,296
Over 180 days past due B Z R 180H 16 13
15,781 18,788

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December
2015 are aggregate amount of US$1,215,000 (2014:
US$1,104,000) due from related companies, arising from
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of
the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear interest at rates
determined by the Group after past due and are repayable
within credit periods similar to those offered by the Group to

its major customers.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 BEAEMR - ZERHEMERERR

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
ZE R Ry
US$’°000 US$’000
B i By
Income tax receivables JE W P 45 380 49
Prepayments, deposits and AR -~ R
other receivables A, WS ek 7,656 6,288
8,036 6,337
Note: Mt :
Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables REFER _-Z—HFET_H=1+—HZHEMNEZK -
as at 31 December 2015 was an aggregate amount of US$4,000 (2014: & K I M EROR K > B AF048 KT (2R
nil), US$5,239,000 (2014: US$2,890,000) and US$1,000 (2014: nil) —PU&E : HE) > 523.9FEIE (ZF—PULE 1 289.0%
due from joint venture, associate and related companies, respectively. FEIE) KO EIC (T —VU4E : ) 40 71 5 BE K
The balances are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed terms of GEEE -BEAFKBBE AR ZIKIE  ZEE
repayment. B Ty RGP ~ H 5 2% 0[] € 2 3 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
= -1 F F &

106



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

23

E K @

X E B ER

2~ H

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 W E - F—HE+ H=+—H IL4)¥
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23 HBERBITER
2015 2014
e = L;
US$’000 US$’000
FoF FoLFoo
Cash and bank balances other B4 K SRAT 5 A7
than time deposits (R 95 2 B 17 30) 6,650 16,985
Time deposits EHFER 11,402 —
Cash and cash equivalents B4e Bl 4S5 EY 18,052 16,985
Notes: M 7t

(a)

At 31 December 2015, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
RMB24,084,000 (2014: RMB28,259,000), which were
equivalent to US$3,709,000 (2014: US$4,553,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB into other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods depending on the cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

B

24 TRADE PAYABLES 24 BENESZERX
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of ZAS 4 ] i A B R RE A B 5 R R =2 IR B 4
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (DB HW ) T :
follows:
2015 2014
NG S T ZR A
US$’°000 US$’000
# T 7T FL T I
60 days or below 60H LT 2,995 4,770
61 to 180 days 612 180H 39 112
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 20 1
Over 360 days ZR360H 30 1
3,084 4,884
25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HiEMSEKRIRARFEREHN
2015 2014
= Sl T 2 ZR 4
US$’000 US$’000
F L F T FoL T T
Other payables and accruals At A B 2k Mo TH AR 6,169 10,195

Included in the Groups’ other payables and accruals as at 31 December
2015 were an aggregate amounts of US$11,000 (2014: US$960,000)

due to related companies.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

BANK BORROWINGS

26 RITEMR

2015 2014
SEoEE W
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FoF FEoLFoo
Bank loans, secured I R AT A 3K (a) 5,436 8,379
Bank loans, unsecured S 3K A SR AT A R 11,242 9,893
Total bank borrowings SRAT G B AR A (c) 16,678 18,272
Analysed into amounts repayable: BEEHES A
Within one year or on demand —4E N BB R 15,523 15,855
In the second year i g 1,155 1,209
In the third to fifth year N T - 1,208
Total bank borrowings SRAT A kA8 T 16,678 18,272
Portion classified as current liabilities SRR LB A D (15,523) (15,855)
Non-current portion BB A 1,155 2,417
Notes: i

(a)

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment of US$3,616,000 (2014: US$4,585,000) (note
14(a)) and land lease prepayments of US$486,000 (2014:
US$525,000) (note 15(a)) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.

At 31 December 2015, the unutilised borrowing facilities
amounted to US$6,114,000 (2014: US$9,201,000).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in

RMB.

At 31 December 2015, none of the covenants relating to bank
borrowings had been breached (2014: nil).
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B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E - F—HHE+_H=+—H L4
27 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 27 HttFERBHAE
2015 2014
G- Sl T4 R4
US$’000 US$’000
FuFi F T T
Non-current portion of deferred income  JE i Bl B 43 1) & 1L A 2,521 2,819
The deferred income of the Group as at 31 December 2015 REEP _-Z2—HER _F—WNE+_H
and 2014 represent the government grants received and will =+ — | WE R A O WOEOR B RO
be recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the FH B G E WAL S AR DL B A B v H S
expected useful lives of the relevant assets. R o
28 DEFERRED TAX 28 IEEFIIE
The components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities and TAME N > AS4E B 2 38 1k A1 I £ 45 > 5 ) 4L Rk
their movements during the year are as follows: mTF :
Dividend
withholding
tax Others Total
J 5. BB 4 Aty A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
F T F T F T
At 1 January 2014 R _F—N4E—H—H (2,321) (676) (2,997)
Deferred tax credited to N E R Nz
profit or loss during RAEBLIE (M aE11)
the year (note 11) 190 365 555
Exchange realignment FEE 50, 3 2% 1 - 1
At 31 December 2014 R -NEFZH=1—H (2,130) (311) (2,441)
At 1 January 2015 B _FE—HFE—H—H (2,130) (311) (2,441)
Deferred tax credited/ RN EIE R F05)
(charged) to profit or loss ZIEERLIE (M FE11) 303 (162) 141
during the year (note 11)
Exchange realignment FE 5, it 2% - 1 1
At 31 December 2015 Ro-F—HE+_H=Z+—H (1,827) (472) (2,299)
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B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

28 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established
in mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$2,962,000 (2014:
US$2,551,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$296,000 (2014:
US$255,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that

profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 WME _F—HAET A=+ —H L4
29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 KR
2015 2014
“E—HAE R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t E 7 o ¥ TIL
Authorised Wi
Ordinary shares: BB
787,389,223 shares 787,389,223 %
(2014: 19,426,000 shares) (ZF 4
of US$0.1 each 19,426,000/%)
5 B i fH0. 155 78 (b) 78,739 1,943
Convertible preference shares: i 15 R BB IR -
12,610,777 shares (2014: nil) 12,610,777
of US$0.1 each (ZF— Y4 1 )
T B i E0. 158 78 (a), (b) 1,261 -
80,000 1,943
Issued and fully paid CHITRHR
Ordinary shares: BB -
240,718,310 shares 240,718,310/
(2014: 11,952,000 shares) (ZF 4
of US$0.1 each 11,952,000/%)
B i 1E0. 155 78 (c) 24,072 1,195
Convertible preference shares: i 15 R BB -
12,610,777 shares (2014: nil) 12,610,777
of US$0.1 each (ZF— Y4 )
T B i H0. 158 78 (c) 1,261 -
25,333 1,195
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

29

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

ordinary shares and convertible preference shares during the

B ()

RBEEZF-HFER-F-NWFE+ A
b HIREERN > R S%ERCETE

years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows: TR Y e N e Lk ES
Number of authorised shares
VYA IEN
Authorised
Convertible convertible
preference  Authorised preference
Authorised i Ordinary shares shares ordinary share share Total
it ke BETHEK
T B % gl B % At
Note US$°000 US$'000 US$'000
Wit Frfr  #Frfr  FExfx
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 RoF—-NE-H—H>
and 1 January 2015 ZZ-PEFZAZT-R
R-F-HE—A—H 19,426,000 - 1,943 - 194
Increase in authorised share capital B0 O 160,16 70 ¥ ek
of US$0.1 each (b) 767,963,223 12,610,777 76,796 1,61 78,057
At 31 December 2015 REB-EEFZH=E+—H 787,389,123 12,610,777 18,139 1,261 80,000
Number of shares in issue
CRARAHE
Issued
Convertible convertible
preference [ssued preference
Issued and fully paid CHITRAR Ordinary shares shares  ordinary share share Total
i CHfT CBITHRE
T B T B Mt it
Note US$'000 US$'000 US§000
it #ifr  Frfr  EiFx
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 REZZ—W4E—~H—H-
and 1 January 2015 ZRZ-NEFZAZT—H
RoF-LE—~R—H 11,952,000 - 1,195 - 1,195
Shares issued pursuant to capitalisation R B AL BT BB 4
issue of US$0.1 each 0IELZ BA (c) 128,766,310 12,610,777 081 1,261 24,138
At 31 December 2015 REZZ-LEFZHZ4—H 140,718,310 12,610,777 24,07 1,61 15,333
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HEF_H=+—HILESE
29 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The convertible preference shares are convertible into

ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the

same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.

Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote

in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s

residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i)

(iii)

in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the distribution
value (as defined in the bye-law of the Company) of
all the convertible preference shares held by them

respectively;

the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the

shares held by them respectively; and

the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to
and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the
holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled
to participate in such assets, by reference to the
aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by them

respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.

X EBERA

29
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

»

=

29

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Mt =

Year ended 31 December 2015 BRE - E—HE+ _HA=+—HIL4FE
IR (%)
Mtat : (%)

(b) RZB—HENHZT=H > AN BIR

On 23 June 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased by the creation of 767,963,223 ordinary shares
of US$0.1 each and 12,610,777 convertible preference shares
of US$0.1 each.

On 29 June 2015, the Company allotted and issued
228,766,310 ordinary shares and 12,610,777 convertible
preference shares as follows: (a) 153,169,499 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued at US$0.1 each to CPP in
capitalisation of the consideration payable by the Company
to CPP (note 1); (b) 34,924,313 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at US$0.1 each to CPP as the sole
shareholder of the Company in capitalisation of the amount
of US$3,492,431.3 which would be due from the Company to
CPP as at 11 June 2015 and (c) 40,672,498 ordinary shares
were allotted and issued at US$0.1 each and 12,610,777
convertible preference shares were allotted and issued at
US$0.1 each to CPP as the sole shareholder of the Company
in capitalisation of the amount of US$5,328,327.5 out of the

retained earnings.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HEF_H=+—HILESE
30 RESERVES

31

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve mainly represents: (i) the
amount of the entire equity interests of Chia Tai
Pucheng and Chia Tai Huazhong acquired from CPP
of US$15,317,000 (note 1), and (ii) the deemed
contribution arising from the transfer of Ek Chor
Investment of US$30,093,000 (note 1).

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with PRC Companies Law or the Law
of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and
Foreign Investment as applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, joint venture and associate. None of the
Group’s PRC reserve funds as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 2.4(p).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its equipment, properties and land

under operating lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated

with original terms within one year.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

Within one year

AN

B A R

30

31

B

i 18

(c)

AREEMZHEHREEFT L LF
—HET+ZA=ZHIRFEZ &
RPN AR A RERSEERN -

B REAR (D DR
TE R 3 B TE K 3 v 2 0 R B 4
F51,531. 78 %00 (M 5E1) » Je(ii) R
GOBEmELNBREERESE R
3,009.3# 56 (FiFE1)

o R R < o AR B B 9 B AR
5 T e (o S A WD~ R S I R
O ) J PR o I A R A S
PR o AR T TAE R
TR -WETZHAZ T HZ P
i <2 WE A BB LB B 8L 2 07 AR e

(d) A B ok 6 45 4 S U A0 S 5 2
o A P e A W P A R S 22 o R A
7% R4 B 2.4 (p) BT 3R 7 W BOR E
ﬁ o

KEeBERH

A% 55 VAR B¢ 268 L 4 e T LB T A
W3k R b > B R W SR ALY 2 14 o

PEF-REFZA=Z4H o REATHY
SRR T > ACHE B AR A 5 A A8 HE 1 AL

B

2015 2014
SEEE CF WA
US$’000 US$000

H T F I T T
- 2
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥
BARESE

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as
at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: T EE & » fH ¥ RAE H#4 :

Buildings, plant and machinery M~ W5 AR

(a)

ACEE B B R 2 EAORMEWE ¢

2015 2014
SECRE CECWE
US$’000 US$’000
K7 T I KT T
1,240 1,564

(b)  The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint

venture is as follows:

(b)

A A B8 A S 2 EARYE I ¢

2015 2014
SRR ZER A
US$’000 US$’000
F T FKILT 7T
Contracted, but not provided for — TWEE & » fH ¥ RAE B4 29 115
33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33 BEALEE
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEEBALHXS

The Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

Sales of goods to: S E M T
CPP and its subsidiaries I e % Bt I 2 ]
High Orient Enterprises High Orient Enterprises
Limited and its related Limited J% H B 2 4> 3 »
entities, excluding CPP A ALHE D o R I RS A )

and its subsidiaries

A 4R A A Y BB N A DL R AR
5t

2015 2014

SE R L
US$’000 US$’000
X7 T 7t KTCT T
9,327 6,389
1,797 1,893

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F #

117



118

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

Note:

Prices of goods sold to related companies were determined
with reference to the prevailing market prices of the goods
in respective local markets, which were determined with
reference to the cost of raw materials, other value added,
reasonable profit margins, market demand for goods and
competitive prices offered by independent third-party suppliers
of similar products. Selling prices to related companies shall be
no more favourable than those made available to the Group’s

customers which are independent third parties.

These related party transactions also constituted continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules with effect from the listing of the Company on 3
July 2015.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with joint venture,
associate and related companies included in trade
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and other payables and accruals are
disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 25, respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel
who are also directors of the Group

#5391 18 5 45 A

Short term employee benefits

B AR L

33

B

BEALHKE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HBEEATHRS (&)
Wik :

T it B8 BT % 5 W AT B
A5 ~ TS K2 % SRR R A ~ LAl 3
B~ A SRR TR S T A 2 TR
T P 8 3 585 = 07 3% G v 2 436 0D 2 o 1 TR
355 350 FAEUMG T TEAE o 6 B (MG A AN T A AR
G THLB =TT H P 2 -

AAFRZR—HELHZH EW% M
AR HAR > EREA LR
Sy IR A A B AR 5 o

HEEALT ZEKRBR

A B A 55 1 S A S IR A AT
o] L 2 ) 22 A 5 T R KB S R
AR B ME WO B - AT IR - R R
JR L 53 i 4 5 S R B 21~ 22
K25 o

EEEIREBEAE(FRES) ZHE

2015 2014
R S
US$’000 US$’000
ES A KT T
1,102 801
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Year ended 31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to interest rate, credit, currency and
liquidity risks in the normal course of its business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks

are described below:
(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to market
risk arising from changes in interest rates in respect
of cash and cash equivalents is considered relatively

minimal.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts
of the Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the

2~ H

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
December 2015 # E - —HE+_HA=+—HILEE

34 BIBEBRERERRBGEK

AL B — SRR OB AR T T B R
B BRI E R o AR T A
T i DA B A 48 T A L % 45 L e O R R
S 5 L B A B SR S AR B 0 T

(a) B =EARE

A4 I S R B PR AR 4R
P 2 A TAT: o A4 I Sl i ) A2 2
il 2y 2B L B SRR B AT o AR
P RS A o i 5] B M B R
W 2 i 35 i 5 B A 3 A

PUTF 2 AC SR MY e R - SRAT A K
A T 36 ) G e o e R A > B

reporting period that are exposed to interest rate risk: T
2015 2014
“ER N4 ZE A
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount  interest rate
iR T R ViES . T R GRS
US$’000 % US$’000 %
F T FL T
Fixed rate denominated in: [ & F R 3% LR
15 W Ty BELAL
RMB PN 11,242 5.18 7,734 6.13
Floating rate denominated in: F B F RIZPL T
W Ty B
RMB AR 5,436 5.15 10,538 6.49
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HEF_H=+—HILESE

34 FINA

B AR L

B

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 HEEEIES S RBUEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) EEEkEE)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a T 2 W B R 2 B AT R R AE A R
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through KRBT » A BRI B bE 25
the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the PR A e (At s B R 5 ) -
Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other
variables held constant):
2015 2014
- S d - kS
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in profit in profit
after tax and after tax and
equity equity
B Bt 12 K Bl 4%
i A B HE A it P B HE 4
¥om, (W) B, (W)
US$’000 US$’000
By in FoLTor
Increase 100 basis points B4 1005k (41) (80)
Decrease 100 basis points WA 1005 2 41 80
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number of
major banks. This cash management policy limits the

Group’s exposure to concentration of credit risk.

At the end of the reporting period, 19% (2014: 34%)
of the total trade and bills receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions are conducted with
reference to the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China. Payments for imported materials and
the remittance of earnings outside mainland China are

subject to the availability of foreign currencies.

Export sales of the Group are conducted primarily
in US$. For certain subsidiaries, joint venture and
associate, funds denominated in RMB may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB appreciate/depreciate against US$, it may
reduce/increase the foreign currency equivalent of such
earnings available for distribution by these subsidiaries,

joint venture and associate of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(b)

(c)

B35 B B T ¢ R B ()

ERAR

ACHR A WK B AT BOL Bl & A7
K o BLIE B4 45 BIBOR AR 7 A< 42 1
i & Z Ja b o

PR EK  19% (ZF— P4 -
34%) Z MW B2 5 Mk S SR AR AR A
AR W B KRBT o A B I 45 4T A
H& P B AR DL o A7 % 1B Bt ik
WY HH B > At A T T
A 00 A P TR AR TR R o T R A
e 7 M i P B 2 e R W 2 A
BRI 3B B2 Al R AR B4 i B B
W ) ZE RO -

5 BE LB

N R GE H H SRS o B bh
ME 32 5 &% 43 1) 22 7% v BN RSRAT Bt it
R R AT o b I b [ A 4 2 A
T ER AsF 2k A e A\ B K #8852 T B D
B B A

ACHRE M B DL SO DB o AT
WG 2\ - A AR A > W@
A g DAN B WS 5 46 2 5 0 i 3 At 1
VU B2 AR R i Al -

fifi 5 N RS T THE W2 (i > BT
BB IR A H A 2w B R A
B AR S8 S A T I AN (S -
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HEF_H=+—HILESE

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at

the end of the reporting period to a possible change

in RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity

(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). The

analysis excludes differences that would result from

B A R

34

2~

MEEREELHREX (&)

(c) SMERBR (&)

T A B A I At B A A S B A AN L
o AHR ) Z B B v A R HE 2 (1
A AR [ 1 1 A1 A W) B N A
B A R 52 B ) 7 i R A
B W M AT R R A 2 ) R R
JE o %% o B A B4 B A S s B
B A AR [ 2 B B R T

the translation of the financial statement of foreign AR -
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Increase/
Appreciation/ (decrease) Increase/
(depreciation) in profit (decrease)
in RMB before tax in equity
AR B Bt wir
Vigi: g i 1 5 BE 253 m
(W2 18) /S (A) (W)
US$’000 US$’000
By n FIL T oL
Year ended 31 December 2015 BKE_F 04
+=H=+—H
k4R
If US$ weakens against RMB & o N R Iz (E 3% (395) (336)
If US$ strengthens against RMB il & o g N R ¥ T (3%) 395 336
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE_F 4
+=-H=+—H
k4R B
If US$ weakens against RMB i 58 0 B N\ R B2 A 3% (5006) (430)
If US$ strengthens against RMB 3088 A\ R FHA (3%) 506 430
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F - H=Z+—HILF)¥

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2015

34 HMBEREREDHRBE(E)

(d)

RBESRAR

ACHE B Y 7 A ) 4 T R 1
SRATAR K > A 45 B 4 B A B 4 P
Z T H - o

7% 45 T B B 0 T T 2 A B e

SR DL D% e 55 12 00 B 4 okt % SRAT AR

TAEBAR B R Z B A > A%
PR £ A0 AR U Bk I A B 5 U

R_Z-HEFHAH=1+—H

Within 1 year 1to5
or on demand years Total
HER
gAR—E B k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FxFrx FrFfrx FErTFr
Trade payables JE A 82 5 MRk 3,084 - 3,084
Other payables and accruals U b A5 B ok B T B 6,169 - 6,169
Bank borrowings SRAT K 15,523 1,155 16,678
Estimated interests on 1 5HERAT A 3
bank borrowings FE 353 27 380
25,129 1,182 26,311
At 31 December 2014 HoE—NE+_H=+—H
Within 1 year lto5
or on demand years Total
HE R
HAR—E —FENE ok
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000
Frfrx Frfr FErTox
Trade payables A B 55 MR 3k 4,884 - 4,884
Other payables and accruals J A B A Rk e TR B 10,195 - 10,195
Bank borrowings HATAE K 15,855 2,417 18,272
Estimated interests on 51 84T 15
bank borrowings B 449 163 612
31,383 2,580 33,963
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HEF_H=+—HILESE

34 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

B AR L

34
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(e)

ExEE

ACHR A B A B H A R R B A
A5 T R A A o N PR R AL
NS ELEE S Y SN SR LR PN
1t -

7% 55 T 45 A 8 1R O 1 8 1B A A
ZRHE > AR R o Ty T AR B
R AR > A 4R I T B S
A5 T JBE SR JE B 4 R B B AT T A o
A 4 18] WG S AT e A0 358 O A 2 AR
RoRBE-Z-HER T4
ToAZtT—HIEEE - WS EAR
LM AR - BORSO e H 2T -
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B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _F—HFE+ _H=+—HIL4EE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35 ZAXA2QRMBZERRE
THE COMPANY

2015 2014
ZE I xR
US$’000 US$’000
By an FoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B & B
Investments in subsidiaries T B 2 =) B 23,654 8,337
CURRENT ASSETS i B B
Prepayments, deposits and AR - RE R
other receivables At JE W B 3¢ 4,345 6,723
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B & S ED 13,121 10,410
Total current assets MR A 17,466 17,133
CURRENT LIABILITIES it By i
Other payables and accruals At JE A R K R A 323 2,569
NET CURRENT ASSETS oI B A 17,143 14,564
NET ASSETS & A 40,797 22,901
EQUITY HE £5
Issued capital OB T A 25,333 1,195
Reserves (note) it il (k) 15,464 21,706
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 30 40,797 22,901
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B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A=+ —HIL4EE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35 XA TMBHERRE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: M EtE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAF Z AR ENT
Exchange
Retained fluctuation
profits reserve Total
A HE W B)
A 43 BL A ikt #h Ham
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
i3 FoLF FoLFo FoLF o
At 1 January 2014 W _F—NE—H—H 2,916 32 2,948
Profit for the year YN | 18,767 - 18,767
Exchange realignment e 34, ) 2 - (9) )
At 31 December 2014 B _F—mE+_A=+—H
and 1 January 2015 Kk _F—-hFE—H—H 21,683 23 21,706
Loss for the year AR 1] (918) - (918)
Exchange realignment [FE 5, ) - 4 4
Shares issued pursuant to RIEE AT BT
capitalisation issue 1 % 29 (5,328) - (5,328)
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—HE+_A=+—H 15,437 27 15,464
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